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KINI{ELON PUBLIC SCHOOLS
109 KIEL AVENUE Ò KINNET,ON, NEW JERSEY 07405

TEL: (973) 838-1418 r F-AX: (913)838-5521
Website: www.kinnelonpublicschools.org

Kerry I(eane
Business Administrator
Board Secretary

October 15,2016

Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Kinnelon Borough School District
109 Kiel Avenue
Kinnelon, New Jersey 07405

Dear Board Members:

The cornprehensive annual financial repoft of the Kinnelon Board of Education (the "District")
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy

of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with
the management of the Kinnelon Board of Education (the "Board"). To the best of our

knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is

reported in a manner designed to present fairly the f,rnancial position and results of operations of
the various funds of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an

understanding of the District's financial activities have been included'

The comprehensive annual financial repoft is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,

statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this transrnittal letter, the District's

organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes tlie basic

financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditor's report thereon. The statistical section

includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year

basis. The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with Title 2 U'S.

Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Adntinistrøtive Requirements, Cost Principles,

and Audit Requirentents for Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance") and New Jersey's OMB

Circulars 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, SÍate Grants, and State

Aid. Information related to this single audit, including the auditor's report on internal control and

compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and questioned costs, are included

in the single audit section of this report.

REPOR ITS The Kinnelon School District is an

independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by

Standards Board "GASB" as set forth in Section 2100
the Governmental Accounting

of the GASB Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards. All funds of the District are

included in this repoft. The Kinnelon Board of Education and all its schools constitute the

District's reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational seruices appropriate to grade levels Pre-K

through Gradè 12. These include regular, vocational as wellas special education for handicapped

youngsters. The District cornpleted the 201512016 fiscal year with an enrollment of 1992

students.
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Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Kinnelon Borough School District
Page2
October 15,2016

2) ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: While recent job growtl.r in Kinnelon has been

slow, and indicative of the economy as a whole, the most recent unemployment rate in the

community is 4.2%o. This is approximately .7% lower than the national average. Future home

development is limited due to the irnplernentation of the Highlands Act'

3) MAJOR INITIATIVES: Over the past five years, student enrollment in the Kinnelon Public

Schools has diminished slightly. Our student population was anticipated and addressed through

the passage of two referendums (in 2001 and 2006) to provide the needed classroom space at

Stonybrook School, Pearl R. Miller Middle School and Kinnelon High School. The

additions/renovations to Stonybrook and Pearl R. Miller were completed in 2004 while the

Kinnelon High School Project was completed in Septernber 2008. There are no plans for future

building expansion.

establishing and maintaining an internal contro
: Management of the District is responsible for
I system designed to ensure that the assets of the

District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data is

compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally

u""eþted accounting principals (GAAP). The internal control system is designed to provide

reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable

assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be

derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgrnents by

management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring

that an adequate internal control system is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and

regulations related to those programs. This internal control system is also subject to periodic

evaluation by the District management.

5) BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains

budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal

pro,risionr ernbodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Board of Education.

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund, and the

debt service fund. Project length budgets are approved for the capital improvements accounted

for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is

reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a

line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as re-

appropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are

reported as fund balance restrictions, commitments and assignments at June 30,2016.

The District's accounting records reflect

generally accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting

Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of
funds. These funds are explained in "Notes to the Financial Statements", Note 1.
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Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Kinnelon Borough School District
Page 3

October 15,2016

7) CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the Dishict is guided in large part by state

statuteas detailed in "Notes to the Financial Statements", Note 3. The District has adopted a cash

management plan which requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from

loss únder the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA").

GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with

a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public

funds only in public depositories locáted in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in

accordance with the Act.

S) RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board caries various forms of insurance, including but not

ti*it.d t" g"r"*t liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft

insurance on property and contents, and fidelity bonds.

9) OTFIER INFORMATION: Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by

trd.p."d*t 
"èrtin"¿ 

public accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting

firm of Nisivoccia LLÞ, was selected by the Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set

forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the Uniform

Guidance and New Jersey's OMB Circular 15-08. The auditor's report on the basic financial

statements and combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the

financial section of this rðport. The auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit are

included in the single audit section of this report.

l0) ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the

1çin*lott School Board for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and

taxpayers of the school district and thereby contributing their full support to the development and

maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this report could not have been

accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff'

Respectfully

Diane
Superintendent

Kerry
Board iness Administrator
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Mount Arlington Corporate Center
200 Valley Road, Suite 300

Mt, Arlington, NJ 07856
973-328-1825 | 973-328-0507 Fax

Lawrence Business Park
1 1 Lawrence Road
Newton, NJ 07860

973-383-6699 | 973-383-6555 Fax

certified Public Accountonts & Advisors

Independent Auditors' Report

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Kinnelon Borough School District
County of Morris, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type

activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the

Kinnelon Borough School District (the "District") in the County of Morris, as of and for the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Resp o nsibility fo r the Finøncial Støtements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the

design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation

of financial statements that arc free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

A uditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our

au<lit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards

applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance,

Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal

control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as

well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinions.

www. nisivoccia.com
lndependent Member of BKR lnternational
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The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Kinnelon Borough School District
Page2

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective

financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the

aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the Kinnelon Borough School District, in
the County of Morris, as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where

applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supp I ementary Infor mation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's

discussion and analysis, which follows this report, the pension schedules in Exhibits L-l to L-4 and the

related notes and the budgetary comparison information in Exhibits C-l through C-3 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential

part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,

or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other

knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with suff,rcient

evidence to express an opinion or provide any assutance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District's basic financial statements, The accompanying supplementary information such as the

combining and individual non-major fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedules of
expenditures of federal and state awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part200,
Uniþrm Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
("Uniform Guidance") and New Jersey's OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy þr Recipients of Federal
Grants, State Grants, and State Aid, are also presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The accompanying supplementary schedules such as the combining and individual non-major fund financial
statements and the schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used

to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures

applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing

and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the

basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the

supplementary schedules and the schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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The Honorable Presidellt and Members
of the Board of Education

Kinnelon Borough School District
Page 3

The accompanying other information such as the introductory and statistical sections has not been subjected

to the audifing-prõcedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not

express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Støndards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards,we have also issued our repoft dated octobet 15,2016

on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters'

The purpose of that ,.pott is to describe the scõpe of our testing of internal control over financial repofting

a'd óompliance and thå results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over fiuancial

reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with

Gàuern*ent Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and

compliance. I
il,sìrc".ie LLP

October 15,2016 NISIVOCCIA LLP

Mount Arlington, New JerseY

John J
Public School 02

Certified Public Accountant



Page I 1

REQUIRED SUPPLEMEI\TARY INFORMATIOI\ _ PART I
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSIOI{ AND ANALYSIS



Page 12

Management Discussion and Analysis
(Unaudited)

This section of Kinnelon Borough School District's annual financial report presents its discussion and

analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. Please read it in
conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the district's financial statements, which
immediately follow this section.

Financial Hightights

The District's financial status decreased slightly on a district-wide basis and increased significantly
on the fund basis in the current year.

In2015ll6,the Govemmental Activities had $47,309,186 in revenue. The majority of Governmental

Activities revenue was raised through local properly taxes and state aid. The total Governmental

Activities expenses for 2015116 were $47,401,202.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of three parts: management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic

financial statements, and required supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two

kinds of statements that present different views of the district:

¡ The first two statements are district-wide financial statements tha| provide both short-term and long-

term information about the district's overall financial status'

o The remaining statements arc fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the district,

reporting the district's operations in more detail than the district-wide statements.

o The governmental funds statements tell how basic services such as regular and special education

were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.

o Proprietary funds statements offer short- and long-term ftnancial information about the activities the

district operates like a business, such as food services and the enrichment program.

o Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the district

acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit ofothers.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and

provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information

that further explains and supports the financial statements with a comparison of the district's budget for the

year. Figure A-1 shows how the various parts of this annual report are arranged and related to one another.

a

a
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Figure A-l
Organization of Kinnelon Borough's School District Financial Report

Management's

Discussion and

Analysis

District-Wide
Financial

Statements

Basic

Financial

Statements

Fund

Financial

Statements

Required

Supplementary

Information

Notes to the

Financial

Statements

Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the District's financial statements, including the portion of the

District's activities they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview

section of management's discussion and analysis highlights that structure and contents of each of the

statements.
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Figure A-2
Major Features of the District-Wide and tr'und Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

District-Wide
Statements

Governmental
Funds

Proprietary
Funds

Fiduciary
Funds

Scope

Entire district
(except fiduciary
tunds)

The activities of the
district that are
not proprietary or
fiduciary, such as

special education
and building
maintenance

Activities the
district operates
similar to private
businesses, food services
and enrichment program

Instances in which
the district
administers
resources on behalf
of someone else,

such as scholarship
programs and
student activities
monies.

Required
Financial
Statements

a

o

Statement of
net position
Statement of
activities

¡ Balance sheet
o Statement of

revenue,
expenditures,
and changes in
fund balances

a

a

a

Statement of net
position
Statement of revenue,
expenses and changes
in net position
Statement of cash

flows

Statement of
fiduciary net
position
Statement of
changes in
fiduciary net
position

a

a

Accounting
Basis and
Measurement
Focus

Accrual
accounting and
economic
resources focus

Modified accrual
accounting and
current financial
resources focus

Accrual accounting and

economic resources focus
Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Type of
Asset/Liability
Information

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and
capital, short-term
and long-term

Generally assets

expected to be used
up and liabilities
that come due
during the year or
soon thereafter; no
capital assets or
long-term liabilities
included

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
short-term and
long-term

All assets and
liabilities, both
short-term and
long-term;funds
do not currently
contain capital
assets, although
they can

Type of
Inflow/Outflow
Information

All revenue and
expenses during
the year,
regardless of when
cash is received or
paid

Revenue for which
cash is received
during or soon after
the end of the year;
expenditures when
goods or services
have been received
and the related
liability is due and
payable

All revenue and expenses
during the year, regardless
of when cash is received
or paid

All additions and
deductions during
the year, regardless
of when cash is
received or paid
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Dìstrìct-wìde Støtements

The District-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods

similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the district's
assets, deferred inflows and outflows and liabilities. All of the current year's revenue and expenses are

accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two District-wide statements report the District's net position and how it has changed. Net position - the

difference between the district's assets, deferred inflows and outflows and liabilities - is one way to measure

the district's financial health or position.

Over time, increases or decreases in the district's net position are an indicator of whether its financial
position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.
To assess the district's overall health, you need to consider additional nonfinancial factors such as

changes in the district's property tax base and the condition of school buildings and other facilities.

In the district-wide financial statements, the district's activities are divided into two categories

Governmental activities: Most of the district's basic services are included here, such as regular and

special education, transportation and administration. Property taxes and state formula aid finance

most of these activities.
Business-type activities: The district charges fees to help it cover the costs of certain services it
provides. The district's food service and enrichment program are included here.

Fund Financial Støtements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the district's funds, focusing on its
most significant or "major" funds - not the district as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the district uses

to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs:

¡ Some funds are required by state law and by bond covenants.
. The district establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes (such as

repaying its long-term debts) or to show that is it properly using certain revenue (such as federal
grants).

The District has three kinds of funds

Governmentalfunds: Most of the district's basic services are included in governmental funds, which
generally focus on { I } how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow
in and out, and {2} the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the
governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether

there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the

district's programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of
the district-wide statements, additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds

statements explains the relationship (or difference) between them.

Proprietary funds: Services for which the district charges a fee are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the district-wide statements. The district's
enterprise funds (one type of proprietary fund) are the same as its business-type activities but provide
more detail and additional information, such as cash flows. The district tses internal service funds
(the other kind of proprietary fund) to report activities that provide supplies and services for its other
programs and activities. The district currently does not maintain any internal service funds.

a

a

a

a

a

a



a Fiduciary funds: The district is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others, such as

scholarship funds and the student activities funds. The district is responsible for ensuring that the

assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended pulposes and by those to whom the

assets belong. The district excludes these activities from the district-wide financial statements

because it cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

Notes to Financiol Statements: Provides additional information essential to full understanding of District-

wide and fund financial statements.

Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole

Net Position. The District's net position is shown in Figure A-3
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Percentage

Change

20r5116

Figure A-3

Current and

Other Assets

Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Governmental Activities

20t4ll5 20tsll6

Condensed Statement of Net Positon

Business-Type Activities Total School District

2014115 2015116 20l4ll5 2015116

$ 2,106,617

42,266,9t8

s 2,s63,s76

4t,351,197

$ 255,701

65,787

$ 290,246

70,392

360,638

8 2,362,318

42,332,705

$ 2,853,822

41,42r,589

20.81%

-2.1s%

-0.94%44,373,535 43,9 14.773 321,488 44,69s,023 44,275,411

r,348,473 2,781,024 106.24%t,348,473 2,781,024

30,86s,754

2,054,919

32,920,673

Deferred Inflows of Resources 459,120 t62,416

Long-Term Debt

Outstanding

Other Liabilities

Total Liabiiities

Net Position:

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted

Unrestricted/(Defi cit)

Total Net Position

29,372,157

2,180,007

31,552,164

10,787

10,787

15,401

15,401

29,372,157

2,190,794

30,865,7s4

20

3t,562,95t 32,936,074

5.09%

-5.s0%

4.35o/o

-3.87%

65.32%

-4.01%

459,120 t62,416 -64.62%

2t,151,918

677,206

(8,1 18,400)

20,326,091

1,119,539

(7,832,922)

6s,787 70,392 20,396,483

1,1 19,539

(7,558,077)

21,217,705

677,206

(7,873,486)244,914 274,845

$ 13,710,724 $ 13,612,708 $ 310,701 s 345,237 $ 14,021,425 s 13,957,945 -0.450/o

Changes in net position: The District's combinednet position was $63,480, or 0.45%o,less than it was the year

before primarily due to the general operations of the District. (See Figure A-4).



Figure A-4
Changes in Net Position from Operating Results

Governmental
Activities

Total School Governmental
District Activities

Business-Type
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

Total School

District
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Percentage

Change

20t511620lsl16 2015116 20151t6 201411s 201411s 2014115

Revenue:

Program Revenue:

Charges for Services

Operating Grants and

Contributions
General Revenue:

Property Taxes

Other
Total Revenue

Expenses:

Instruction
Pupil and Instruction Services

Administrative and Business

Maintenance and Operations

Transportation
Other

Total Expenses

Increase/(Decrease) in Net Position

$ 9s,199 $

1t,336,746

35,513,410
363,83 1

802,53 5

77,617

s 897,734 $

11,414,363

35,5 13,4 l0
364,270

r1t,993 $

9,663,4s9

727,901

72,344

363

800^608

$ 839,894 6.89%

9,73s,803 17.24%

439

47,309,186 880,59 I 48,t89,777 44,647,447

34,673,171
198,824

34,673,171

r99,187
45 5

2.42Yo

82.88%
6.03%

7.43Yo

4.81%
t0.78%
-6.34%
-5.25Yo

26.1r%
6.13%

242.17%

27,531,454
8,66s,465
4,t66,028
3,744,103
2,002,699
1,297 ,453

27 ,531,454
8,665,46s
4,t66,028
3,744,103
2,002,699

25,627,075
8,267,997

3,760,660
3,997,483
2,113,636

922,532

25,627,075
8,267,997

3,760,660
3,997,483

2,113,636
1,699,7s6846,05 5 ) l 43,508 777,224

777.22447,407,202 846,05s 48,2 53.2s7 44,689,383 45,466,60'7

$ (e8 .016) $ 34,s36 $ $ (41 ,936) $ 23384 _$._c_q,552)

Revenue Sources. The District's total revenue for the 2015116 school year was 548,189,777. (See Figure A-5).
property taxes and state formula aid accounted for most of the District's revenue, with local taxes accounting for

$35,51j,410 of the total, or 73.69 percent. (See Figure A-5). The remainder came from State and Federal Aid,

miscellaneous sources and charges for services. It is important to note that of the State and Federal Aid and Grants

of $l1,414,3 63,54,028,957 is included in funds that are not received by the District, but are included in funding for

Social Security ryhich is received by the District, and pension payments and post retirement benefits that the State

of New Jersey pays on behalf of the District. The Kinnelon Borough School District basically conducts its

operations from the revenues it receives from its local taxpayers'

Figure A-5
Sources of Revenue for Fiscal Year 2016

Amount Percentage

Sources of Income:

Operating Grants and Contributions
Properfy Taxes

Charges for Services

Other

s 48,189,777 100.00%

8 11,414,363
35,5r3,410

897,734
364,270

23.69%
73.69%
1.86%

0.76%
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The total cost of all programs and services was 548,253,251. The District's expenses are predominantly

related to instructing, caring for (pupil services) and transporting students (79.17 percent). (See Figure A-6)'

The District's administrative and business activities accounted for 8.63 percent of total costs.

Figure A-6
Expenses for Fiscal Year 2016

Amount Percentage

Expense Category:

Instruction
Pupil and Instruction Services

Administrative and Business

Maintenance and Operations

Transportation
Other

$ 27,531,454
8,665,465
4,166,028
3,744,103
2,002,699

57.06%
17.96%

8.63%
7.76%
4.t5%
4.44%) 143,508

_s 482s32s1_ 100.00%

G ov e r n me nt a I A c tiv ilie s

As discussed elsewhere in this commentary, the hnancial position of the District decreased slightly. This was

mostly attributable to the increased costs of maintaining existing programs and the provision of a multitude

of spécial programs and services for disabled pupils while revenues increased significantly less than related

expenses. The District is also faced with significant increases in health benefit costs.

Careful management of expenses remains essential for the District to sustain its financial health. Among the

many significant cost savings actions implemented during the year were:

o Authorizedparticipation in several co-op purchasing programs to reduce costs.

. Monitoring of Special Education costs and out of District Tuition

It is crucial that the District continue to examine its expenditures carefully. Increasing teacher, parental and

student demands for new activities and programs must be evaluated thoroughly. District resources continue

to be at their tightest level in many years.

Figure A-7 presents the cost of six major district activities: instruction, pupil and instructional services,

administration and business, maintenance and operations, transpoftation, and other' The table also shows

each activity's net cost (total cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid provided for

specific programs). The net cost shows the financial burden placed on the District's taxpayers by each of
these functions:
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Figure A-7

Instruction
Pupil and Instruction Services

Administrative and Business

Maintenance and Operations
Transportation
Other

Net Cost of Governmental Activities
Total Cost of Net Cost of

Services Services

Total Cost of
Services

Net Cost of
Services

201slt6 20tslt6 20t4115 20t4lts

s 27,531,454
8,665,465
4,766,028
3,744,103
2,002,699
1,291,453

s 19,737,011

6,735,806
3,337,232
3,236,752
1,631,003
1,291,453

s25,627,075
8,267,997

3,760,660
3,997,483
2,113,636

922.532

$ 19,148,703

6,593,367
3,731,944
3,580,965
1,177,974

922,532

$ 47,407,202 s 35,975,257 $ 44,689,383 $ 35,149,485

o The cost of all governmental activities this year was 547 ,407 ,202.
o The federal and state govemments subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions ($1 1.34

million).
o Most of the District's costs ($35.51 million), however, were financed by District taxpayers.

o A portion of governmental activities was financed with $1,479,898 in state aid based on the

SFRAPAY formula, which is included in the $l1.41 million grants and contributions noted above.

. The remainder of the funding came from miscellaneous revenue and investment earnings.

B usíness-Type Activities

Net position from the District's business-type activity increased by $34,536. (Refer to Figure A-4). Factors

contributing to these results included:

. Food services revenues exceeded expenses by approximately $3,546.
¡ Enrichment program revenues exceeded expenses by approximately $30,990.
¡ Enrichment program interest totaled $438 and food service interest totaled $187.

¡ A transfer from the Food Service Fund to the General Fund for interest in the amount of $ 186

Financial Analysis of the District's Funds

The District's financial position increased significantly despite the rising challenge of difficult economic

times. Expenditures during the recent year increased significantly as a result of an increased number of
pupils with disabilities. In addition to greater numbers, these pupils are more profoundly disabled and require

more complex educational and related services.

Other significant areas of budget increases have been in health insurance and energy. Insurance costs for all
staff have continued to dramatically increase.

Difficult economic times have had a direct impact upon the District's revenue sources. As required by the

enacted legislation, the District offset the tax levy by reducing fund balanceto2Yo of the current expense

budget. As overall revenue for the District diminishes, the amount of funds generated to offset the tax levy
likewise decreases.

All of these factors are likely to continue for the next several years. To maintain a stable financial position,

the District must continue to practice sound fiscal management.



General Fund Budgetøry Highlights

Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget several times. The budget

amendment is as follows:
¡ Over the course of the year, the District reviewed the annual operating budget several times. These

budget amendments were for changes made within budgetary line items for changes in school-based

needs for programs, supplies and equipment.

Capital Asset ønd Debt Administrution

Figure A-8

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)
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Percentage

Change

2015116

Government Activities

20lsl16 2014115

Business-Type Activities

20t5116 2014115

Total School District

2015116 20l4lr5

Land

Buildings and Building

Improvements

Machinery and

Equipment

$ 45,810 $ 45,810 $ 45,810 $ 4s,810 0.00%

40,274,589 41,424,400 40,274,589 41,424,400 -2.78%

1,030,798 796,708 $ 70,392 $ 65,787 1 ,101 ,1 90 862,495 27.67%

Total Capital Assets

(net of Depreciation) $ 4r,3s1,t97 s 42,266,918 g 70,392 $ 6s,787 s 41,421,s89 s 42,332,705 -2.15%

Depreciation expense for Governmental activities totaled $1,356,140 in2015116
business-type activities totaled $ 1 3,995 in 201 5 I 16.

Depreciation expense for

Long-term Liøbilities

At year-end, the District had $30,865,754 in general obligation bonds and other long-term liabilities
outstanding as shown in Figure A-9. (More detailed information about the District's long-term liabilities is

presented in Note 7 to the financial statements.)

Figure A-9
Outstanding Long-Term Liabilities

20r5lr6

Percentage

Change
20rslt6

General Obligation Bonds (Financed

with Property Taxes)

Net Pension Liability
Compensated Absences

Capital Leases
$ 30,865,754 s 29,372,157 5.09%

r The District's accrued compensated absences increased by 5394,494, mainly due to vesting of
additional employees now eligible for compensated absences and a change in the method used to

calculate the liability.
o The District paid down debt, retiring $1,380,000 of outstanding bonds.
o The District entered into new capital leases totaling 9273,73'7.
r The District's net pension liability increased by $2,205,366.

Total School District
20t4lr5

$ 19,735,000
g,gl4,506

1,042,511
273 737

$ 21,115,000

7,609,140
648,017

-6s4%
2898%
60.88%
100.00%
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Factors Bearing on the Districtos Future Revenue/Expense Changes

The impact of School Funding Reform Act. The School Funding Reform Act, adopted by the State of New

Jersey ôn January 13, 2008, provided a new funding formula which would meet the requirements of Abbott v

Burke in future years. The legislation requires each district to provide a local "fair share" contribution to

property taxes to support schools, and establishes an "adequacy budget" for each district. The adequacy

ùudget-is based a state formula for each expenditure that is needed to provide a thorough and efficient

eduõation. The formula also includes enrollment and other factors such as the number of special education

students and at-risk, or poor students.

The impact of S29, adopted by the State of New Jersey on July 13,2010 reduced the District's ability to

increase taxes. While A1 legislation in 2007 restricted increases in the District's tax levy to 4o/o, this

legislation, further reduced any increase in tax levy to no by more than 2o/o. The District will need to focus

on containing increases in areas such as health benefits and other employee benefits.

The impact of 52937 adopted by the State of New Jersey on June 28, 2011 provides pension and health

benefit reforms. This legislation has provided some long term cost containment for pension and health

benefit costs. In 2074-15,the District will be in Tier IV of the health benefit contribution schedule.

Contacting the District's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide the District's citizens, taxpayers, customers and investors and

creditors with a general overview of the district's finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability

for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information,

contact the Board of Education Office, Glen Sisco School, 109 Kiel Road, Kinnelon, NJ 07405.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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DISTRICT.\ilIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables from Other Governments

Other Receivables
Internal Balances
Interfund Receivable

Inventory
Restricted Assets:

Capital Reserve Account - Cash and Cash Equivalents

Capital Assets:

Sites (Land)
Depreciable Buildings and Building Improvements

and Machinery and Equipment

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

Deferred Amount on Refunding

Difference Between Expected and Actual - Pension

Changes in Assumptions - Pension

Changes in Proportions - Pension

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Payable to State Govemment

Unamortized Bond Premium

Prepaid Sales

Uncarned Revenue

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due Beyond One Year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Investment Gains - Pensions

Changes in Proportions - Pensions

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted for:
Capital Projects

Unrestricted/(Defi cit)

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JtrNE 30. 2016

Governmental
Activities

1,119,539

45,810

41,305,387

43 531

1,003,660

234,140
1,054,000

489,224

2,781,024

940
2,020,029

18,708

1,431,128
29,434,626

32,905,431

t57,798
4,618

162,4t6

20,326,091

1,119,539
(7,832,922)

840,661

s74,829
16,399

(1s,242)
12,148

259,751
4,635

15,242

1 0,61 8

$ 1,100,412

579,464
16,399

Business-type
Activities

Exhibit A-1

Total

$$

12,148
l0,6r 8

1,119,539

45,810

70,392 41,37 5,779

360,638 44,260,169

I,003,660
234,140

l,0s4,000
489,224

a 781,024

12,192
3,209

940
2,020,029

12,192
21,917

1,431,128
29,434,626

15,40t 32,920,832

157,798
4,618

162,416

70,392 20,396,483

1,119,539
(7,ss8,077)274,84s

$ 13,612,708 S 345,237 S 13,95'/,94s

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE
AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT

Total Net Position



Exhibit A-2
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2016

Program Revenue

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Chanses in Net Position

Business-type

Activities
Charges for

Services

Operating

Grants and

Contributions

Capital
Grants and

Contributions

Governmental

Activities
FunctionsÆroqrams

Governmental Activities:
Instruction:

Regular

Special Education

Other Special Instruction

Other Instruction

Support services:

Tuition
Student & Instruction Related Services

General Administrative Services

School Administrative Services

Central Serwices

Administrative Information Technology

Plant Operations anci Maintenance

Pupil Transportation

Interest on Long-Term Debt

Capital Outlay

Total Governmental Activities

Expenses

s 19,783,406

5,415,r47
6s9,958

1,672,943

$ 95,199 s 4,355,167

2,900,659

150,546

292,872

$ (15,333,040)

(2,514,488)
(509,412)

(1,380,071)

$ (15,333,040)
(2,514,488)

(509,412)
(1,380,071)

Total

(r,198,981)
(5,536,825)

(588,033)

(2,183,231)
(463,116)
(t02,852)

(3,236,752)
(1,63 1,003)

(769,935)
(s27.518\

1,607,359

7,0s8"106

676,806
2,783,629

571,136

134,457

3,744,103
2,002,699

769,935
s27.5t8

408,378

1,521,281
88,773

600,398

108,020

31,605

507,351

371,696

(1, r98,98 1)

(5,536,825)
(588,033)

(2,183,231)
(463,116)
(102,8s2)

(3,236,752)
(1,63 1,003)

(769,935)
(s27.sr8\

9s,199 11,336,746 -0- (35,975,257) -0- (35,975,257)
47,407,202

H
êD

oa
(D

t-)(/r



KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR TFIE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2016

Program Revenue

439

34,536

310.701

Exhibit A-2
Page2 of2

Total

3,545

30,552

3s,877,680

(63,480)

14.021.425

Functions/Programs

Business-Type Activities
Food Service

Enrichment Program

Total Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Govemment

$

Expenses

Charges for
Services

Operating

Grants and

Contributions

Capital
Grants and

Contributions
Governmental

Activities

s (35,975,257)

33,389,621

2,123,789

294,281

69,550

35,877,241

(98,016)

13.710,724

s76,s02
269.ss3

$ 502,430

300.1 05

s 77,617

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Position

Business-type

Activities

s 3,545
30,ss2

$

34.097846,055 802,s3s 77,617

s 48,253,257 $ 897,734 $ 11.414,363

General Revenues:

Taxes:

Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes, Net
Taxes Levied for Debt Service

Investment Earnings

Miscellaneous Income

Federal and State Aid not Restricted
Total General Revenue

Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning

Net Position - Ending

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE
AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT

s 13,612,708 S 34s,237 S 13,957.945

34.097

34,097 (35,941,160)

439

33,389,621

2,123,789
439

294,281

69.550

Þ
0ao
l.)
o\
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30.2016

Special

Revenue

Fund

Exhibit B-l

Total
Governmental

Funds

General

Fund

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables From State Government
Receivables From Federal Govemment
Other Receivables

Interfund Receivable

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILII]ES AND FLTND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Payable to State Govemment
lnterfund Payable

Uneamed Revenue

]'otal Liabilitìes

Fund Balances:

Restricted for:
Capital Reserve

Assigned:

Designated For Subsequent Year's

Expenditures
Year-end Encumbrances

Unassígned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

$$ 840,66 1

555,505

28,223

|,1t9,539

19,324

16,399

840,66 l
s55,s05

19,324

16,399

28,223

|,119,539

$

$ 2,s43,928 g 35,723 fi 2,s79,6s'l

15,242

940
16,01s
I 8,708

940
3t,317
18,708

$ $

$

15,242 3s,723 50,965

l,l 19,539

rs0,000
345,991
91 ls6

2,s28,686

1,1t9,539

I 50,000

345,99t
9t3 156

2,528,686

$ 2.543.928 S 35.723

Amounts reported for Govemmental Activities in the Statement of Net Positions (A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in Govemmental Activities are not financial

resources and therefore aro not reported in the funds. 'Ihe cost ofthe
assets is $66,559,896 and the accumulated depreciation is $25,208,699.

Bond issuance premiums are reported as a revenue in the Governmental

Funds in the year of receipt. The original premium is 62,41 1 ,531 and accumulated

amortization is $45 1,502.

Deferred amount on refunding is not reported as an expense in the govemmental funds in the

year ofexpense. The deferred amount on refunding is $1,451,905 and the accumulated

amortization is 5448,245.

The Net Pension Liability for PERS is not due and payable in the current period and is not

reported in the Govemmental Funds.

Certain amounts related to the Net Pension Liability are deferred and amortized in the Statement

ofActivities and are not reported in the Governmental Funds:

Changes in Assumptions - Pensions

Changes in Proportions - Pensions

Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience - Pensions

Investment Gains - Pensions

Changes in Propofions - Pensions

Other Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in

the current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds

Net Position of Governmental Activittes

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE
AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT

fi 4t,3sl,197

(2,020,029)

1,003,660

(9,8 l 4,s06)

1,0s4,000

489,224

234,140
(1 s7,798)

(4,61 8)

(21"051"248)

$ 13,6r2,708
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICI'
IN

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JTINE 30. 2016

Exhibit B-2

Total
Governmental

Funds
General

Fund

Special

Revenue

Fund

Debt
Service

Fund

REVENUE:
Local Sources:

Local Tax Levy
Tuition
Miscellaneous

Total - Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources
Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Regular Instruction
Special Education Instruction
Other Special Instruction
Other Instruction
Support Services and Undistributed Costs:

Tuition
Student & Instruction Related Services

General Administrative Services

School Administrative Services

Central Services

Administrative Information Technology
Plant Operations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Unallocated Benefits

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Other Charges

Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

OTHER F'INANCING SOURCES/(USES):
Capital Leases (non-budgeted)

Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance-July I

$ 33,389,621
9s,199

208,847 $ 85,434

$ 2,123,789 $ 35,s13,410
95,r99

294,281
35,902,890

6,140,022
475.304

33,693,667
6,067,s78

?q 761,245

11,692,895
3,190,268

389,775
952,371

l , r 98,981
4,510,091

49',7,199

1,645,247
390,213

81,520
2,759,399
l,988,640
9,61 l,081

694,200
39,601,880

85,434
2,894

475,304
563,632

88,328
66,926

408.378

2,123,789
69,550

2,193,339 42,518,2t6

11,781,223
3,257,194

389,77s
952,371

1,607 ,359
4,510,091

497,199
1,645,247

390,213
8l,520

2,759,399
1,988,640
9,611,081

1,3 80,000
8 r 3,339

I,3 80,000
8 r 3,339
694,200

Excess/(Defi ciency) of Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures 159,365

563,632 2,193,339 42, 3 58,851

159,365

273,737 273.737

273,737 273.737

433,102 433,102

2,095,584? og5 .584

S2, 528,686 $ -0- $ -0- s 2,528,686

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARtr

AN INTEGRAL PART OF TI.IIS STATEMENT

Fund Balance-June 30



KINNEI,ON BOROT IGH SCHOOI, DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES.

AND CHANGES TN FLJND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FLINDS
TO THE STATEMFNT OF ACTTVITIES

Depreciation expense
Capital outlays

Deletions

$ (1,356,r40)
444,988
(4.569)

Exhibit B-3

s 433,102

(915,721)

1,380,000

(394,494)

(273,737)

(2,205,366)

814,728
489,224

234,140

295,665
1,039

148,945

û05.s41)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JTTNE 30.20I6

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (from B-2)

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement
of Activities (A-2) are Different Because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities, the cost ofthose assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which depreciation and deletions exceeded capital outlays.

Repayment ofserial bonds is an expenditure in the Governmental Funds, but the repayment reduces

Long-Term Liabilities in the Statement of Net Position and is not reported in the Statement of Activities.

In the Statement ofActivities, certain operating expenses, e.g., compensated absences (vacations) are

measured by the amounts eamed during the year. In the govemmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the eamed amount
exceeds the paid amount, the difference is reduction in the reconciliation (-); when the paìd amount
exceeds the eamed amount the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+).

Capital Leases are a financing source in the Governmental Funds. They are not revenue in the Statement ofActivities;
Capital Leases increase long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.

The net pension liability reported in the statement of activities does not require the use of current financial resources
and is not reported as an expenditure in the Govemmental Funds:

Change in Net Pension Liability
Deferred Outflows:

Changes in Assumptions
Changes in Proportion
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience

Deferred Inflows:
Net difference between projected and actual investment eamings on pension plan investments
Changes in Proportion

The govemmental funds report the effect ofbond premium when debt is first issued, whereas
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. (+)

The governmental funds report the effect ofthe deferred amount on refunding costs relative to advance refunding when debt is
fi¡st issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. (-)

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE
AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT

Þ
tao
(,)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities s (98,016)



KINNELON BOROU SCHOOT, DTSTRTCT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PRIETARY
JLINE 30.2016
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Exhibit B-4

Total
Business-type

Activities -
J{o-ñEo-_iTffis

Enterprise Funds

$ 259,751

ASSETS:

Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable:

Federal
State

Interfund Receivable
Inventories

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets:
CapitalAssets
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Total Non-Current Assets

Total Assets

LIz\BILITIES:

Curent Liabilities:
Prepaid Sales
Unearned Revenue

Total Current Liabilities

NET POSITION:

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

4,343
292

15,242
10,618

290,246

407,542
(337,150)

70,392

360,638

12,192
3,209

15,401

'70,392

214 845

$ 345,237

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE
AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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Exhibit B-5

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
EXPENS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2016

Business- Activities -

Food
Service

Enrichment
Program

Funds

Business-type
Activities -

Enterprise Funds

Operating Revenue:
Local Sources:

Daily Sales - Reimbursable Programs
Daily Sales - Non-Reimbursable Programs
Progtam Fees

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses:
Reimbursable Cost of Sales
Non-Reimbursable Cost of Sales
Salaries, Benefits & Payroll Taxes
Employee Benefits
Management Fee
Professional and Technical Services
Depreciation Expense
Supplies and Materials
Administrative Expense

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income/(Loss)

Non-Operating Income:
Local Sources:

Interest Income
State Sources:

State School Lunch Program
Federal Sources:

National School Lunch Program
Food Distribution Program

Total Non-Operating Income

Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning of Year

Net Position - End of Year

16,111
175

73,995
1,584

33,945

129,151
151,802
416,935

11,799
16,111

175
13,995
35,536
70,551

$ 243,341
259,089

502,430 300, I 05

243,341
259,089
300 105

802,535

$

$ 300,105

129,151
151,802
229,739 187,196

11,799

33,952
36,606

576,502 269 553

30,552

846,055

(74,072)

1

3,654

54,014
19 949

438

(43,520)

439

3,654

54,014
19,949

77,618 438 78,056

3,546

126,265

30,990

184,436

34,536

3 I 0,701

J___34s237$ 129,811 s 215,426

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE
AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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Exhibit B-6

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DIS'IRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2OI 6

Business-Type Activities - Entemrise Funds

Non-Major Funds

Food

Service

Enrichment
Program

Total
Business-type

Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers

Payments to Employees

Payments for BenelÌts
Payments to Suppliers

Payments for Administrative Expenses

Net Cash Provided by/(Used for) Operating Activities

Cash Flows Used for Capital Financing Activities:
Acquisition of Equipment

Net Cash Flows Used for Capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Cash Received from Federal and State Sources

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Investment Income

Net Cash Flows Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided byl(Used for)

Operating Activities:
Operating Income/(l,oss)

Adjustment to Reconcile Operating Income/(Loss) to Net Cash Provided by

/(Used for) Operating Activities:
Federal Food Distribution Program

Depreciation Expense

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

Decrease(lncrease) in Inventory
Increase(Decrease) in Prepaid Sales

Increase(Decrease) in Unearned Revenue

Net Cash Provided by/(Used for) Operating Activities

$ 504,604
(s 1 6,690)

(26,413)

$ 300,10s
( I 87,1 96)

(11,799)
(33,9s2)
(36,606)

804,709
(703,886)
(tl,799)
(60,36s)
(36,606)

$

(38,499) 30,552 0,e4"r)

(1 8,600)

5'1,09457,094

57,094

(l 8,600)

-0- 57,094

438 439

438 439

$ 44,325 $ 215,426

30,986

228,765

$ 2s9,7s1

(4)

44,329

30,990

184,436

s (74,072) $ 30,5s2 $ (43,s20)

19,949

13,995

19,949

13,995

(2,985)

2,t74
2,440

(2,98s)
2,174
2,440

$ (38,499) $ 30,ss2

Investing and Financing Activities :

The District had $769 in USDA donated commodities at June 30, 2015, received commodities

valued at $22,389 and used commodities valued at 519,949 and had $3,209 in commodities at June 30, 2016.

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMËNTS ARE

AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT

_Ï_____---9247)



KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FLINDS
JUNE 30,2016

Unemployment
Compensation

Trust

Flexible
Spending

Trust

Private Purpose
Scholarship

Fund

Page 34

Exhibit B-7

Agency
Fund

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Interfund Payable General Fund
Due to Student Groups

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION:

Held in Trust for:
Flexible Spending Claims
Unemployment Claims

Restricted for Scholarships

Total Net Position

$ 140,712 $ 15,944 $ 81,530 s 278,254
100,303

140,712 15,944 l8l,g33 278,254

1,349
12,148

264,757

278,254

15,944
140,712

181 833

$ 140 712$15,944$181,833$-0-

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE
AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCIÌOOL DISTRICT
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CIIANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JLTNE 30. 20I6

Unemployment
Compensation

Trust

Flexible
Spending

Trust

Private Purpose

Scholarship

Fund

Exhibit B-8

Totals

ADDITIONS:
Contributions:

Plan Members
Donations

Total Contributions

Investment Ealnings:

Interest

Net Investment Earnings

Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS:
Flexible Spending Claims

Unemployment Compensation Claims

Scholarships Awarded

Total Deductions

Change in Net Posilion

Net Position - Beginning of the Year

Net Position - End of the Year

s 57,570 $ 20,047 $ 77,617
79,500$ 79,500

57.570 20,047 't9,s00 157 117

280 t6 255 551

280 t6 255 551

57 8s0 20,063 79,75s 157,668

)) A)7

42,250

22,423

66,3 r 8

42,250
66,3 r 8

66,3 r 8 )) l)? 42,250 130,991

(8,468)

1 49,1 80

(2,360)

r 8.304

37,505

144,328

26,677

31r,812

s 140,712 $ 15,944 $ 181,833 $ 338,489

THE ACCOMPANYTNG NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE
AN INTEGRAL PART OF TI-IIS STATEMENT
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DIS
NOTES TO THE FIN AT, STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2016

Note l. Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Board of Education (the "Board") of the Kinnelon Borough School District
(the "District") have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as

àppfied to government units. The Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted

siándard-setiing body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more

significant of the Board's accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entitv

The Board is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to function as an educational

institution. The Board consists of elected officials and is responsible for the fiscal control of the District. A
superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entìty, as set forth in Section

210O of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is the

degree of oversight responsibility maintained by the District. Oversight responsibility includes financial

intèrdependency and a resulting financial benefit or burden relationship, selection of governing authority,

designãtion of management, ability to significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal

-utt"rr. In addition, certain legally separate, tax-exempt entities that meet specific criteria (i.e. benefit of
economic resources, access/entitlement to economic resources, and significances) should be included in the

financial reporting entity. The combined financial statements include all funds of the District over which the

Board exercises operating control. The operations of the District include 2 elementary schools, I middle

school, and t high school located in the Borough of Kinnelon. There were no additional entities required to

be included in the reporting entity under the criteria as described above, in the current fiscal year'

Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria,

B. Basis of Presentation

District-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position and the statement of activities present financial information about the District's
governmental and buìiness type activities. These statements include the financial activities of the overall

Úi.t.i"t in its entirety, except those that are fiduciary. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double

counting of internal ìratt.actiotrs. These statements distinguish between the govemmental and business type

activitiei of the District. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovemmental
revenue and other non exchange transactions. Business type activities are financed in part by fees charged to

external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenue for business-

type activities and for each function of thè District's gorrernmental activities. Direct expenses are those that

arè specifically associated with and are clearly identifiable to a particular function._ Indirect expe-nses are

allocäted to the functions using an appropriate allocation method or association with the specific function.
Indirect expenses include hea[th beñènti, employer's share of payroll taxes, compensated absences and

tuition reinibursements. Program revenue includes (a) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services

offered by the programs, ana 6¡ grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or

capital re[uirementi of a particularþrogram. Revenue that is not classified as program revenue, including all
taxes, is piesented as general revenue. the comparison of direct expenses in the program revenue identifies
the exterit to which eãch government function or business segment is self-financing or draws from the

general revenue of the District.



Page 37

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTzuCT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2016
(Continued)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accountine Policies (Cont'd)

B. Basis of Presentation (Cont'd)

Fund Financial Statements

During the fiscal year, the School District segregated transactions related to certain School District functions
or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. The
fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds, including its fiduciary funds.
Separate statements for each fund category - governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary - are presented. The
New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) has elected to require New Jersey districts to treat each
governmental fund as a major fund in accordance with the option noted in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The
NJDOE believes that the presentation of all funds as major is important for public interest and to promote
consistency among district financial reporting models.

The District reports the following governmental funds

General Fund: The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used to account for and
report all expendable financial resources not accounted for andreported in another fund. Included are certain
expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or noninstructional equipment which are classified in the
capital outlay subfund.

As required by NJDOE, the District includes budgeted capital outlay in this fund. GAAP, as it pertains to
governmental entities, states that general fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for
long-lived improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted
revenue. Resources for budgeted capital outlay putposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid,
district taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of or
additions to fixed assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings,
additions to or remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment.

Special Revenue Fund: The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specif,red purposes other than debt service
or capital projects. Thus the Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of speciflrc revenue
from State and Federal Governments (other than major capital projects, debt service or the enterprise funds)
and local appropriations that are legally restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund: The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for and report financial resources that
are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or
construction of capital facilities and other capital assets (other than those financed by proprietary funds). The
financial resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by the
voters as a separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election, funds
appropriated from the General Fund, and from aid provided by the state to offset the cost ofapproved capital
projects.

Debt Service Fund: The Debt Service Fund is used to account and report financial resources that arc
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest.

The District reports the following proprietary funds:
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
FINANCIAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JLTNE 30.2016
(Continued)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accountine Policies: (Cont'd)

B. Basis of Presentation (Cont'd)

Enterprise (Food Service) Fund: The Enterprise Fund accounts for all revenue and expenses pertaining to the
goár¿'s cafeteria operations. The Food Service fund is utilized to account for the operations that are

financed and operatèd in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost
(i.e., expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a
continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Enterprise Fund- Enrichment Program: The Enterprise Fund accounts for all revenue and expenses pertaining
to ttre goárd's enrichment program. This program provides before and after school activities, as well as

kindergarten enrichment opþortunities to students who subscribe to the program.. The Enrichment Fund is

utilized to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business

enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost (i.e. expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of
providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily through

user charges.

Additionally, the District reports the following fund type:

Fiduciary Funds: The Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District on behalf of others

and include the Student Activities Fund, Payroll Agency Fund, the Private Purpose Scholarship Fund,

Flexible Spending Trust Fund, and Unemployment Compensation Insurance Trust Fund.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The district-wide financial statements and the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported

using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recorded

wheã eamed and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related

cash transaction takei place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the District gives or receives value without
directly receiving or giving equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and

donatiõns. On añ accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the

taxes are levied. Revenue fiom grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which
all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement

focuJ and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenue is recognized when

measurable and available. The District considers all revenue reported in the governmental funds to be

available if the revenue is collected within sixty days after the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are

recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term
debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences which are recognized as expenditures to the extent

they have matureã. Õapital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds

ofgeneral long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the District may fund certain programs by a combination of specific
cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants and general revenue. Therefore, when program expens€s

are incurred, both reitricted and unrestricted net position may be available to finance the program. It is the

District's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by general

fevenue.



KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED J{.]NE 30,2016
(Continued)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Cont'd)

D. Budqets/Budsetarv Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue fund and
debt service funds. The budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 was submitted to the County office
and was approved by a vote of the Board of Education. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual
basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each
fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to
the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:20-2A.2(m)1. All budget amendments/transfers
must be made by School Board resolution. A1l budgeting amounts presented in the accompanying
supplementary information reflect the original budget and the amended budget (which have been adjusted for
legally authorized revisions of the annual budget during the year).

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during
the fiscal year. For Governmental Funds, there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of
accounting and generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) with the exception of the Special Revenue
Fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary
integration in the Govemmental Fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the Special Revenue Fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis.
The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenue, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis
financial reports.

The General Fund budgetary revenue differs from GAAP revenue due to a difference in recognition of the
last two state aid payments for the current year. Since the state is recording the last two state aid payments in
the subsequent year, the District cannot recognize these payments on the GAAP financial statements.

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and
GAAP Revenue and Expenditures

Page 39

Special Revenue
Fund

General
Fund

Sources/Infl ows of Resources
Actual Amounts (Budgetary Basis) "Revenue"

from the Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Differences - Budget to GAAP:

Grant Accounting Budgetary Basis Differs from GAAP in that the
Budgetary Basis Recognizes Encumbrances as Expenditures and
Revenue, Whereas the GAAP Basis does not

Prior Year State Aid Payment Recognized for GAAP Purposes, not
Recognized for Budgetary Statements

Current Year State Aid Payments Recognized for Budgetary Purposes,
not Recognized for GAAP Statements

Total Revenue as Reported on the Statement of Revenue, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds.

s 39,758,027 $ 572,096

(8,464)

142,177

(138 ,959)

_9_3eJ6t24s_ s 563,632
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(Continued)

Note I . Sun-rmary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Cont'd)

D. Budgets/Budgetary Control (Cont'd)
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Special Reveuue
Fund

General
Fund

Uses/Outfl ows of Resources :

Actual Amounts (Budgetary Basis) "Total Outflows" from tlie
Budgetary Compari son Schedule

Differences - Budget to GAAP
Encumbrances for Supplies and Equiprnent Ordered but

Not Received are Reported in the Year the Order is Placed for
Budgetary Purposes, but in the Year the Supplies are Received
for Financial Reporting Purposes.

Total Expenditures as Reported on the Statement of Reveuues,

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governnlental Funds

$ 39,601,880 $ 572,096

(8,464)

$ 39,601,880 $ 563,632

E,. Cash and Cash Equivalents and nvestrnents

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash and cash in banks. Certificates of deposit, with maturities of
one year or less when purchased, are stated at cost.

New Jersey school districts are lirnited as to the types of investrnents and types of financial institutions they

may invest in. New Jersey Statute l8A:20-31 provides a list of permissible investments that may be

puichased by New Jersey scliool districts. Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that

requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the

Goverlnrental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect governmental

units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41et seq. establishes tlre requirernents for the security of deposits of governmentalunits. The

statute requires that no governnrental unit shall deposit public funds in a depository unless such funds are

secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both

state and national banks) and savings banks the deposits of which are federally insured. All public

depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value of at least equal to five percent of the average

daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Government Units. If a public depository

faili, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all the other public depositories, is available to pay

the full amount of their deposits to the GovernmentalUnits'

F. Interfund Transactions

Transfers between goverrunental and business-type activities on the district-wide statements are repofted in

the same rranner as general revenue. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a t'equiremetrt

for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are repolted as other financing

,orr""i/ur", in governrnental funds and after nonoperating revenue/expenses in the Enterprise Funds'
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AN

FOR FISCAL YEAR END F,D.]I]NE 3 ?,016

(Continued)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Cont'd)

F. Interfund Transactions (Cont'd)

Repayments from funds responsible for parlicular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for

them are not presented on the fillancial statements'

On fund financial staternents, shoft-term interfund loans are classified as interfund receivables/payables'

These amounts are eliminated in the statement of net position, except for amounts due between governmental

and business-type activities or governmental and agency funds, which are presented as internal balances'

G. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been recorded as all amounts are considered collectible'

H. Encumbrances

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other comlnitnreuts for the expenditure of

resources are recor.ded to reserve a poftion of the applicable appropriation. open encullrbrances in

governmental fgnds otlrer than tlie special reveuue fund are repoúed as restricted, committed and/or assigrred

fund balances at fiscal year end u, tlr"y do not constitute expenditures or liabilities, but rather comtnitments

related to unperformed contracts for goods and services

open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has received advances are t'eflected in

thè balance sheet as unearned revenue at fiscal year end'

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be made at the

begi.ning of the näxt'fiscal year to i,'r"r"ur" the appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the

ouãrtandilng e¡cumbrance amount as of the current f,rscal year end.

Shoft-term interfund receivables/payables represent alnounts that at'e owed, other than charges for goods or

se.vices rendered to/from a particìlâr fund in the District and that are due within one year'

J. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories a'd pr.epaid expenses, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the enterprise

fund, are r.ecordeï ai uu e*peuditure during the year of purchase'

Enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost, which approxirnates market, using the first-in, first-out.(FIFO)

method. prepaid 
"*p;;r;; 

iir the enterprise í'und reprðient payrnents made to vendors for services that will

benefit periods beyond June 30, 201 6.

I. Shoft-terrn Interfund Receivables/P ables:

K. Ca Assets

During the year ended June 30, 7994,the District established a formal system of accounting for its capital

assets. Capital assets acquired or constructed subsequent to June 30, 1994, are recorded at historical cost'

ðãpü"r urråt, u"qrri.ø oi'"ó"rtructed prior to the establishment of the formal system are valued at cost based

on historical records r. t¡i""gL estimation procedures perforrned by an independent appraisal. company'

Land has been recorded at estimated historicai cost. Donãted capital ássets are valued at theil estimated fair

market value on the date received. The cost of normal mainténance and rep-airs is not capitalized' The

District does not possess any infrastructure. Capital assets have been reviewed for irnpairrnent'
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Note l. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd):

K. Capital Assets (Cont'd)

The capitalization threshold (the dollar value above which asset acquisitions are added to the capital asset

accounts) is $2,000. The depreciation method is straight-line. The estimated useful lives of capital assets

reported in the district-wide statements and proprietary funds are as follows:
Estimated

Useful Life
Asset Class in Years

Buildings
Site Improvements
Furniture and Equipment
Computer and Related Technology
Vehicles

50

20

0to
5

I

151

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in govemmental fund operations are accounted for as

capital outlay expenditures in the govemmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets are not capitalized and

related depreciation is not reported in the fund financial statements.

L. Lone-Term Liabilities

In the District-wide and enterprise fund statements of net position, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable govemment activities, business-type activities, or
enterprise funds. Bond premiums and discounts, are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term

of thè related debt using the straight-line method of amoftization. In the fund financial statements, the face

amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are

reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.

M. Accrued Salaries and Wases:

The District does not allow employees who provide services over the ten-month academic year the option to

have their salaries evenly distributed during the entire twelve-month year, therefore, there are no accrued

salaries and wages as of June 30,2016.

N. Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. l6 (G.A.S.B. 16), Accountingþr Compensated

Absences. A liability for compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not contingent

on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the

rights to the benehts.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the District's
various contractslagreements. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation. The District's
policy permits employees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the full amount to subsequent

years. Upon retirement, employees shall be paid by the District for the unused sick leave in accordance with
the District's agreements with the various employee unions/individual employees.
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Note 1. Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

N. Compensated Absences (Cont'd)

In the district-wide Statement of Net Position, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater than one
year should be reported in two components - the amount due within one year and the amount due after one

year.

O. Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue represents cash which has been received but not yet earned.

P. Fund Balance Appropriated

General Fund: Of the $2,528,686 General Fund fund balance at June 30,2076, $345,991 is assigned

for encumbrances; $1,119,539 is restricted in the capital reserve account; $150,000 is assigned and

designated for subsequent year's expenditures and has been appropriated and included as anticipated
revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017; and there is $913,156 in unassigned fund balance.

Calculation of Excess Sumlus: In accordance with N.J.S.A. l8A:7F-7, as amended by P.L. 2004,
c.73 (51701) the designation for Restricted Fund Balance-Excess Surplus is a required calculation
pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996
(CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to restrict General Fund fund balance at the fiscal
year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance
in their subsequent year's budget. The District has no excess surplus at June 30,2016.

The District's unassigned fund balance in the General Fund is less on a GAAP basis than the budgetary basis

by $138,959 as reported in the fund statements (modified accrual basis). P.L. 2003, C.97 provides that in the
event a state school aid payment is not made until the following school budget year, districts must record the
related state aid payment as revenue, for budget purposes only, in the current school budget year. The bill
provides legal authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the current budget year. For
intergovernmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires that recognition (revenue, expenditure,
asset, liability) should be in symmetry, i.e., if one govemment recognizes an asset, the other govemment
recognizes a liability. Since the State is recording the last two state aid payments in the subsequent fiscal
year, the school district cannot recognize the last two state aid payments on the GAAP financial statements

until the year the State records the payable. The excess surplus calculation is calculated using the fund
balance reported on the Budgetary Comparison Schedule, including the final state aid payments and not the
fund balance reported on the fund statement which excludes the last two state aid payments.

O. Net Position

Net Position is the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and

deferred inflows of resources.

A deferred outflow of resources is a consumption of net position by the District that is applicable to a future
reporting period. A deferred inflow of resources is an acquisition of net position by the District that is
applicable to a future reporting period. The District had deferred outflows of resources due to the defened
amount on the refunding, changes in assumptions in pensions, changes in proportion in pensions, and the
difference between expected and actual experience in pensions at June 30,2016. The District had deferred
inflows of resources at June 30,2016 for the changes in proportion in pension and the net difference between
projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments.
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Note 1. Summary of Signif,rcant Accounting Policies (Cont'd):

O. Net Position (Cont'd)

Net position is displayed in three components - net investment in capital assets; restricted and unrestricted.

The net investment in capital assets component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,

construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt

also would be included in this component of net position.

The restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred

inflows of resources related to those assets.

The unrestricted component of net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources,

liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net investment in
capital assets or the restricted component of net position.

R. Deficit Net Position:

The District has a $7,832 ,922 deficit in its govemmental activities Unrestricted Net Position at June 30,2016
primarily as a result of the investment gains in pensions of $157,798, changes in pension assumptions of
$4,618, accumulated compensated absences payable of $1,042,511, and net pension liability of $9,814,506,
offsetby changes in assumptions in pensions of $1,054,000, changes inproportion inpensions of $489,224,
differences between expected and actual experience in pensions of 5234,140, and the unassigned and

assigned General Fund fund balances of $1,409,147. This deficit does not indicate that the District is having
financial difficulties and is a permitted practice under generally accepted accounting principles.

S. Fund Balance Restrictions. Commitments and Assignments:

The restricted fund balance category includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes

stipulated by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation. The committed fund
balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined for a formal
action of the District's highest level of decision-making authority. Amounts in the assigned fund balance

classification are intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to
be classified as restricted or committed. Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the

District's General Fund and also includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In
other funds, the unassigned classifications should be used only to report a deficit balance resulting from
overspending for specific purposes for which amounts have been restricted, committed or assigned. A fund
balance restriction has been established for capital reserve.

The District Board of Education has the responsibility to formally commit resources for specific purposes

through a motion or a resolution passed by a majority of the Members of the Board of Education at a public
meeting of that governing body. The Board of Education must also utilize a formal motion or a resolution
passed by a majority of the Members of the Board of Education at a public meeting of that goveming body in
order to remove or change the commitment of resources. The District has no committed resources at June 30,

2016.

The assignment of resources is generally made by the District Board of Education through a motion or a
resolution passed by a majority of the Members of the Board of Education. These resources are intended to
be used for a specific purpose. The process is not as restrictive as the commitment of resources and the

Board of Education may allow an official of the District to assign resources through policies adopted by the

Board of Education. The District has assigned resources for encumbrances and for subsequent year's

expenditures in the General Fund at June 30, 2016.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

T. Revenue - Exchange and Nonexchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal

value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On the modified-accrual basis,

revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. Available
means the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon

enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District, available means

within sixty days of the fiscal year end.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the School District receives value without directly giving equal value in
return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from
property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants,

entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been

satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which speciff the year when the resources

are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the

School District must provide local resources to be used for a specified putpose; and expenditure

requirements, in which the resources are provided to the school district on a reimbursement basis. On the

modified accrual basis, revenue from nonexchange transactions must also be available before it can be

recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and

available at fiscal year end: property taxes, interest, and tuition.

U. Operating Revenue and Expenses

Operating revenue is those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the respective

Proprietary Fund. For the School District, these revenue are sales for food service and fees for the enrichment

program. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the service that is the primary activity
of the respective Proprietary Fund.

V. Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue and

expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

W. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the State

of New Jersey Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) and the State of New Jersey Teachers' Pension

and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and additions toldeductions from the PERS's and TPAF's net position have been

determined on the same basis as they are reported by the PERS and the TPAF. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance

with the benefit terms. Pension Plan investments are reported at fair value.
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Note 2. Explanation of Certain Differences Between Governmental Fund Statements and District-Wide
Statements

Due to the differences in the measurement focus and basis of accounting used on the government fund
statements and district-wide statements, certain financial transactions are treated differently. The basic
financial statements contain a full reconciliation of these items.

Note 3. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investruents

Cash and cash equivalents includes petty cash, change funds, amounts in deposits, money market accounts
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Investments are stated at cost, or amortized cost, which approximates market. The Board classifies
certificates of deposit which have original maturity dates of more than three months but less than twelve
months from the date of purchase, as investments.

GASB Statement No. 40, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Deposit and Investment Risk
Disclosures, requires disclosure of the level of custodial credit risk assumed by the District in its cash, cash

equivalents and investments, if those items are uninsured or unregistered. Custodial credit risk is the risk that
in the event of a bank failure, the govemment's deposits may not be returned.

Interest Rate Risk - In accordance with its cash management plan, the District ensures that any deposit or
investment matures within the time period that approximates the prospective need for the funds, deposited or
invested, so that there is not a risk to the market value of such deposits or investments.

Credit Risk - The District limits its investments to those authorized in its cash management plan which are

those permitted under state statute as detailed on the following page.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes require that School Districts deposit public funds in public depositories located in New
Jersey which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal Savings and Loan
Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of the United States that insures deposits made in public
depositories. School Districts are also permitted to deposit public funds in the State of New Jersey Cash
Management Fund.

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds that exceed
depository insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal at least five percent of the average daily balance of
collected public funds on deposit.
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Note 3. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments (Cont'd)

Deposits (Cont'd)

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75%o of the capital funds
of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at least equal to 100% of the

amount exceeding 7 5%:o.

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal Reserve Bank of
Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking institution that is a member of the
Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000.

Investments

New Jersey statutes permit the Board to purchase the following types of securities:

(1) Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by the

United States of America;

Government money market mutual funds;

Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued in accordance

with an act of Congress, which security has a mafurity date not greater than 397 days from
the date of purchase, provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not
dependent on any index or other external factor;

(4) Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397 days from the date of
purchase, approved by the Division of Investment of the Department of the Treasury for
investment by local units;

(2)

(3)

(s)

(6)

(7)

Local government investment pools;

Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund; or

Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities if:

(a) the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to paragraphs (1) and
(3) above;

(b)

(c)

(d)

the custody ofcollateral is transferred to a third party;

the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;

the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository as defined in
statute; and

(e) a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and security of collateral is
executed.
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Note 3. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments (Cont'd)

As of June 30,2016, cash and cash equivalents and investments of the District consisted of the following
Restricted

Cash and Cash Cash and Cash

Accounts Equivalents Equivalents Investments Total

Checking Accounts
Certificates of Deposit

s 1,611,377 $ 1,125,014

$ 100,303
s 2,736,391

100,303

$t 611,377 $ 1,125,014 $ 100,303 s 2,836,694

156

442,177

During the period ending June 30, 2016, the District did not hold any investments other than certificates of
deposits. The carrying amount of the Board's cash and cash equivalents and investments at June 30, 2076
was $2,836,694 and the bank balance was $3,378,228.

Note 4. Capital Reserve Account

A capital reserve account was established by the Borough of Kinnelon Board of Education by inclusion of
$ 100 on February 9, 1999, for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent
fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in the
general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the District's approved Long
Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the State Department of Education, a district
may increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget
certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution atyear end of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended
line-item appropriation amounts, or both. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the
express approval ofthe voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special
question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C.
6:23A-5.1(d)7 , the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted
capital projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1,2015 s 677,206

Interest Earned
Increase per Board Resolution June 25,2016

Ending balance, June 30,2016 $ 1,179,539

The balance in the capital reserve account at June 30,2016 did not exceed the balance oflocal support costs
of uncompleted capital projects in the District's approved LRFP.
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Note 5. Capital Assets

Capital assets balances and activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 were as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Activities
Beginning

Balance Additions
Deletions/

Adjustments

Total
Ending
Balance

Governmental Activities :

Assets not Depreciated:
Land

Total Assets not Depreciated

Assets Being Depreciated:
Buildings and Building Improvements
Machinery and Equipment

Total Assets Being Depreciated

Governmental Activities Capital Assets

Less: Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Governmental Capital Assets, Net of
Accumulated Depreciation

Business-Type Activities:
Machinery and Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets,
Nct of Accumulated Depreciation

Regular Instruction
Other Instruction
General Administrative Services

S chool Administrative S ervices

Plant Operations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation

Total Depreciation Expense

810 $ 45,810
45 810 45,810

60,924,506 60,924,506
5,589,580149 16l $444,988 $ (4,569)

073.667 444,988 (4,569) 66,5t4,086

66,119,477 444,988 (4,569) 66,559,896

$4s

66.

(19,500,106)
(4,352,453\

(23,852,559)

(1,149,81 l)
(206,329)

(1,356,140)

s 42,266,918 $ (911,152) $ (4,569)

(20,649,917)
(4,ss8,782)

(25,208,699)

s41,351,197

$ 388,942 $
(323,lss\

18,600
(13,99s)

g 407,542
(337,1 50)

_$_65,787_ _$_{,60s_
Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows

Amount

$ 87 1,1 84

176,976

30,920
132,766

134,936

9,358

$ 1,356,140

Note 6. Transfers to Capital Outlay

During the year ended June 30, 2016, the District made transfers to capital outlay accounts of $77 ,I l8 for the

acquisition of equipment. Transfers to equipment accounts do not require approval of the County
Superintendent.

$ -0- 8 70,392
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Note 7. Long-Term Liabilities

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported in the

district-wide financial statements :

Balance
June 30,

20r5 Retired
Issued/
Accrued

Balance
June 30,

20t6

Amounts
Due Within
One Year

Serial Bonds Payable

Net Pension Liability
Compensated Absences

Capital Leases

Total

A. Bonds Payable

$ 21,115,000
7,609,140

648,0r7
$ 2,205,366

423,568
273 't37

$ 1,380,000

29,074

$ 19,735,000 $ 1,375,000

9,814,506
1,042,511
213,731 56,128

s29,372,15',7

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the school district through referendums'

All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds issued by the

Board are general obligation bonds and will be liquidated through the debt service fund.

On Novemb er 16,2005,the District issued refunding school bonds of $4,615,000 with interest rates ranging

from 3.25o/o to 4.00vo to advance refund $4,406,000 school bonds with interest rates ranging ftom 4.7 5%o to

4.g0%. The bonds mature on October 1,2009 through 2017 and October 1,2009 was the first optional

redemption date aI 100% of par. The net proceeds from the issuance of the general obligation bonds were

used tå purchase U.S. government securitiós and those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with

an escrow agent to prõvide debt service payments until the school bonds were called on October 1,2009.

The advance refunding met the requiremørts of an in-substance debt defeasance and the school bonds were

removed from the District's govemment-wide financial statements.

As a result of the advance refunding, the District reduced its total debt service requirement by $148,999,

which resulted in an economic gain (áifference between the present value of the debt service payments on the

old and new debt) of$135,485.

On Septemb er 14, Z1I1,the District issued refunding school bonds of $9,980,000 with interest rates ranging

from i.00o/o to 4.00o/o to advance refund $9,502,000 school bonds with interest rates ranging from 4.05o/o to

4.jO%. The bonds mature on October I, 2013 through 2021 and October l, 2020 is the first optional

redemption daie at 100% of par. The net proceeds from the issuance of the general obligation bonds were

used to purchase U.S. govemment securitiés and those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with

an escrow agent to p.oiid" debt service payments until the school bonds are called on October 1,2020. The

advance reñnding met the requiremenis of an in-substance debt defeasance and the school bonds were

removed from the District's govemment-wide financial statements.

As a result of the advance refunding, the District reduced its total debt service requirement by 5434,927,

which resulted in an economic gain (ãifference between the present value of the debt service payments on the

old and new debt) of $395,461.

On February 10,2015, the District issued refunding school bonds of $11,230,000 with interest rates ranging

from2.00o/oto 5.00% to advance refund $12,454,000 school bonds with interest rates ranging from 4.00% to

4.25%. The bonds mature on February l,20Ig through 2033 and February I,2026 is the first optional

redemption date at 100% of par. The net proceeds from the issuance of the general obligation bonds were

used tò purchase U.S. govemment securities and those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with

an escrow agent to p.oiid" debt service payments until the school bonds are called on February 7,2026. The

s 2,902,671 s 1,409,074

-:

$ 30,865,754 $ 1,431,128
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Note 7. Long-Term Liabilities (Cont'd)

A. Bonds Pa)rable (Cont'd)

advance refunding met the requirements of an in-substance debt defeasance and the school bonds were
removed from the District's govemment-wide financial statements.

As a result of the advance refunding, the District will realize a total of $1,070,140 in cash savings over the
life of the bond issue. On a net present value basis, the savings equate to $828,7 47 , or 2.7 5%o of the bonds
refunded.

The District had serial bonds outstanding as of June 30,2016 as follows:

Issue

Dates
Interest
Rates

Final Date
of Maturity

Balance

June 30 2016

$ 1,035,000

7,470,000
11,230,000

tUt612005
9lt4/2010
2lt0l20rs

4.00%
3.00-4.00%
2.00-s.00%

l0l1l20r7
101112023

21112033

$ 19,735,000

Debt service requirements on serial bonds payable at June 30,2016 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

2022-2026
2027-203t
2032-2033

$ 1,375,000
1,410,000

955,000
995,000
985,000

4,960,000

6,290,000
2,765,000

81 1,881

756,181
709,1 8 1

670,590
631,481

2,689,565
1,557,200

t97,601

$ 2,186,881
2,166,187
1,664,191
1,665,590
1,616,481

7,649,565
7,841,200
2,962,607

$

$ 19,735,000 $ 8,023,670 _s 2? J58,6r0_

B. Bonds Authorized but not Issued

As of June 30,2016, the Board has no bonds authorized but not issued.
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Note 7. Long-Tenn Liabilities (Cont'd)

C. Capital Leases Pa)rable

The District is leasi¡g schoolbuses under a capital lease. A schedule of the future lninimum lease payments

under these capital leãses, and the present value of tlie net rninirnum lease payrnents as of Jutle 30, 2016 is as

follows:

Year Amount

20t7
201 8

2019

2020
2021

51,122

51,122

51,122

57,121
57,121

$

285,608
(11, 871)

$ 213,731
Less: Alnount representing interest

Present value of net minimum lease payments

The current portion of capital leases payable at June 30, 2016 is $56,128 and the long-temr poftiott is

$217 ,609.

Capital leases will be liquidated by the General Fund'

D Comnensated Absences Pavable

The liability for compensated absences of the governmental fund types is recorded as a long-term liability.

The long-terrn liability balance of compensated absences is $1,042,511 and the expected shoft term liability

is $-0- for Goverumental Activities.

The liability for vested cornpensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within those ftrnds as

the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2016, t'to liability existed for compensated absences in the

Food Service Fund or Enrichurent Fund.

The General Fund will be used to liquidate Compeusated Absences Payable.

E,. Net T,iahilitv

The Public Employee's Retirement Systern (PERS) net pension liability of the goverumeutal fund types is

recorded in the current and long-term liabilities and will be liquidated by the General Fund. The current

portion of the net pension liability at June 30,2016 is $-0- and the long term poftion is $9,814,506. See Note

B for further information on the PERS.

Note 8. sion Plans

Substantially all of the Board's employees parlicipate iu one of the two contributory, defined benefit public

entployee retirernent systems: the Teachel's' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) or the Public Employee's

Reiirement System (PERS) of New Jersey; or the Defined Contribution Retirement Prograur (DCRP).
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Note 8. Pension Plans (Cont'd)

A. Public Employees'Retirement System (PERS)

Plan Description

The State of New Jersey, Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer

defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits (the

Division). For ãdditional information about the PERS, please refer to the Division's Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report (CAFR) which can be found at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annrpts.shtml'

Benefits Provided
The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:l
disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service,

54. PERS provides retirement, death and

except for medical benefits, which vest after

25 yearc of service or under the disability provisions of PERS.

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS:

Tier Definition

1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1,2007

Z Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2,2008

3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2,2008 and prior to May 22,2010

4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after li4ay 22,2010 and prior to June 28. 201I

5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55th of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to

Tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to Tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service

retirement benefits of l/60th of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tier 4

members upon reaching age 62 and, to Tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are

available tó Tiers I and,2 members before reaching age 60, to Tiers 3 and 4 before age 62 with 25 or more

years of service credit and Tier 5 with 30 or more years of service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced

6y a fraction of a percent for each month that a members retires prior to the age at which a member can

rðceive full early retirement benefits in accordance with their respective tier. Tier I members can receive an

unreduced benefit from age 50 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred retirement is

available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement

age for the respective tier.

Contributions

The contribution policy for PERS is set by N.J.S.A. l5A and requires contributions by active members and

contributing -"-b"tr. The local employers' contribution amounts are based on an actuarially determined

rate which includes the normal cost and unfunded accrued liability. Chapter 19, P.L. 2009 provided an

option for local employers of PERS to contribute 50o/o of the normal and accrued liability contribution

amounts certified for payments due in State fiscal year 2009. Such employers will be credited with the full
payment and any r.rch umounts will not be included in their unfunded liability. The actuaries will determine

ttré unfunded liability of those retirement systems, by employer, for the reduced normal and accrued liability

contributions provided under this law. This unfunded liability will be paid by the employer in level annual

payments ou"t u period of 15 years beginning with the payments due in the fiscal year ended Jlum'e 30,2012

ãnâ will be adjusted by the rate of retum on the acínrial value of assets. District contributions to PERS

amounted to $375,884 for fiscal year 2016'
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Note 8. Pension Plans (Cont'd)

A. Public Emplovees' Retirement System (PERS) (Cont'd)

Contributions (Cont' d)

The employee contribution rate was7.06%o effective July 1,2015. Subsequent increases after October 1,

20Il are being phased in over 7 years effective on each July lst to bring the total pension contribution rate to
7.5Yo of base salary as of July 1, 2018.

Pension Liabilities" Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources to Pensions

At June 30,2016, the District reported a liability of $9,814,506 for its proportionate share of the net pension

liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to

calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,2014 which was

rolled forward to June 30, 2015. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a
projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected

contributions of all participating members, actuarially determined. At June 30,2075, the District's proportion

was 0.044Yo, which was an increase of 0.003% from its proportion measured as of June 30,2014.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the District recognized pension expense of $7 46,440. At June 30,

2016, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Amortization
Period

in Years

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Page 54

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Changes in Assumptions - 2014
Changes in Assumptions - 2015

Changes in Proportion - 2014
Changes in Proportion - 2015

Difference Between Expected and Acfual Experience - 2015

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual
Investment Earnings on Pension Plan Investments - 2014

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual
Investment Earnings on Pension Plan Investments - 2015

6.44

5.72

6.44

5.12

5.',72

$ 210,088

843,912

489,224

234,140

208 073

$ 4,618

365,87r

$ 1,985,437 $ 370,489

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources (excluding employer
specific amounts including changes in proportion) related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense

as follows:

5.0

5.0
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(Continued)

(Cont'd)

Resources Related to Pensions (Cont'd)

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30,

Deferred

3.04%

2.15 - 4.40% based on age

3. 1 5 - 5.40% based on age

7.90%

of Resources and Deferred Infl

Total

20t6
20t7
2018

2019
2020

$ 205,779
205,779
205,779

321,736
185,269

$ I,130,342

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2015 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of July 7, 2074 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2015. This actuarial valuation used the following
actuarial assumptions:

Inflation Rate
Salary Increases:

2012-2021
Thereafter

Investment Rate of Return

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female Mortality Tables (setback i
year for females) for service retirement and beneficiaries of former members with adjustments for mortality
improvements from the base year of 2012based on Projection Scale AA. The RP-2000 Disabled Mortality
Tables (setback 3 years for males and setback one year for females) are used to value disabled retirees.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2014 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2011. It is likely that future experience will not
exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience deviates from these assumptions,
the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated. The more the experience deviates, the
larger the impact on future financial statements.
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Note 8. Pension Plans (Cont'd)

A. Public Employees' Retirement Svstem (PERSI (Cont'd)

Long Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (7.90Yo at

June 30, 2015) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of
Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the Board of Trustees and the actuaries. The long-term
expected rate of retum was determined using a building block in which best-estimate ranges of expected

future real rates of return (expected_returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are

developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included
in PERS' target asset allocation as of June 30,2015 are summarizedin the following table:

Asset Class

Target
Allocation

Long-Term
Expected Real

Rate of
Return

Cash

U.S. Treasuries
Investment Grade Credit
Mortgages
High Yield Bonds
Infl ation-Indexed Bonds
Broad U.S. Equities
Developed Foreign Equities
Emerging Market Equities
Private Equity
Hedge Funds/Absolute Return
Real Estate (Property)
Commodities
Global Debt ex. U.S.
REIT

s.00%
r.75%

10.00%
2.10%
2.00%
t.50%

27.25%
12.00%
6.40%
9.25%

12.00%
2.00%
1.00%
3.50%
4.25%

r.04%
t.64%
t.79%
r.62%
4.03%
3.25%
852%
6.88%

10.00%

12.41%
4.72%

6.83%
s32%
-0/0%
s.l2%
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Note 8. Plans (Cont'd)

A. Public Emplovees' Retirement S)¡stem (PERS) (Cont'd)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to rneasure the total pension liability was 4.90Yo as of June 30,2015. This single

blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investlnents of
1.9%o and a municipal bond rate of 3.80% as of June 30,2015 based on the Bond Buyer Go 20 Bond

Municipal Bond lndex which includes tax-exernpt general obligation municipal bonds with an average ratiug

of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assulned that

contributions frorn plan members will be made at the current urember contribution rates aud that

contributions from employers will be lnade based upon the average of the last five years of coutributions

made in relatio¡ to the- last five years of actuarially deterrnined contributions. Based on those assutnptions,

the plan's fìduciary net position was projected to be available to rnake projected future benefit payurettts of
cu¡ent plan metnbers through 2033. Therefore, the long-tenn expected rate of returll oll plan investureuts

*u, upili"d to projected benefit payments through 2033, arÁ the municipal bond rate was applied to

projecied benefit payments after that date in determining the total peusion liability.

Sensitivitv of the District's Pronoftionate Share of the Net Pension Liabil itv to Chanses in the Discount Rate

The following presents tlie District's proportionate share of the collective uet pettsion liability as of .lune 30,

2015 calculat"á using the discou¡t rate as disclosed below, as well as what the District's propottionate share

of the uet pension tiaUitity would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point

lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

E

1%

Decrease

90%

Current
Discount Rate

1%

Increase

4.90%) s.90%(

District's proportionate share of
the Net Pension LiabilitY $ 12,198,230 $ 9,814,506 $ 7,816,009

Pension plan Fid Net Position

Detailed informatio¡ about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued

PE,RS fi nancial statemettts

ers' Pensioll AF

Plan Description

The State of New Jersey, Teachers' Pensiou and Annuity FLrnd (TPAF), is a cost-sharing rrLtltiple-employer

clefined benefit pe¡sion plan with a special funding situation, by rvhich the State of New.lersey (the State) is

responsible to iund 100o/o of the employer contributions, excluding any local etuployer ear"ly retirelrrellt

incentive (ERI) contributions. The 1'PAF is aclministered by the State of New Jersey Division of Petlsiotls

and Benefits (the Division). For additional information about the'ì'PAF, please refer to the Divisioll's

Corlprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) which can be found at

www.state.ll i r rsftreasurv/nensiolr ru'ls.slrtrnl
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Note 8. Pensioll Plalts (Cont'd)

B. Teachers' Pension and Antluity Fund (TPAF) (Cont'd)

Benefits Provided

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 184:66. TPAF provides retireurent, death and

disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after

25 yearc of service or under the disability provisions of TPAF. Members are always fully vested for their

ow¡ contributions and, after three years of service credit, become vested for 2o/o of related interest earued on

tlie contributions. In the case of death before retirement, melnbers' beneficiaries are entitled to full interest

credited to the members' accounts.

The followiug represents the Inembership tiers for TPAF

Tier

1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007

2 Me¡rbels who were eligible to enroll ou or after July 1, 200'Ì and prior to November 2,2008

3 Membe¡s who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2,2008 and pr"ior to May 22,2010

4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or aftel May 22,2010 and prior to June 28. 201 1

5 Melnbers who were eligible to euroll on or after June 28, 201I

Service retirement benefits of 1/5511'of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tiers

I and 2 rne¡rbers upon reaching age 60 and to Tier' 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement

benefits of 1/60tr'of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tier 4 members upon

reaclring age 62 and to Tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirernellt benefits are available to Tiers

1 a¡d 2 members before reaching age 60, to Tiers 3 and 4 before age 62 with 25 or lllore years of service

credit and Tier 5 before age 65 with 30 or more years of service credit. Berlefits are reduced by a fraction of
a perce¡t for each month that a urernbers retires prior to the retirement age for his/her respective tier.

Déferred retirement is availableto melnbers who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached

the service retirement age for tlte respective tier.

Contributions

The contribution policy for TPAF is set by N.J.S.A. 184:66 and requires contributions by active tnernbers

and contributing members. State legislation has modifìed the amount that is contributed by the State. The

State's pension contribution is based on an actuarially deterrnined aruoullt which inclLlded the ernployer

portio¡ of the norrnal cost and au amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Funding for

noncontributory group iusurance benefits is based on actual claims paid. For fiscal year 2015, tlte State's

pension contribution was less than the actuarially detenrlined alnouut.

The er¡ployer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by the State in

accorda¡ce with N.J.S.A. 18:66-33. Therefore, these local participating employers are collsiderecl to be in a

special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a ttottetrployer

contributing e¡tity. Since the local participating employers do not colltribute directly to the plan (except for

employer specific financed aurounts), there is no net pettsiott liability or deferred outflows or itlflows to
report in the financial statements of the local participating etrployers, such as the District. This note

diicloses the portion of the District's total proporliouate share of the net pensiott liability that is associated

with the District. Duringthe fiscal year euded 2016,the State of New Jersey contribLlted $1,279,834 to the

TPAI; for normal pensiou benefits on behalf of the Distlict, which is less than the corttractually required

contribution of $6,070,803.

Definition
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Note 8. Pension Plans (Cont'd)

B. Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Cont'd)

Contributions (Cont'd)

The employee contribution rate was 7.06Yo effective July 1, 2015. Subsequent increases after October 1,

20lI are being phased in over 7 years effective on each July lst to bring the total pension contribution rate to
7.5o/o of base salary as of July 1, 2018.

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30,2076, the State's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District was
599,425,184. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,2015, and the total pension liability used
to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,2014 which was
rolled forward to June 30, 2015. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a

projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating members, actuarially determined. At June 30,2015, the District's proportion
was 0.157%o, which was a decrease of 0.001o/o from its proportion measured as of June 30,2014.

District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

State's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability Associated

with the District

$
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99,425,184

Total _s 99,n5)U_

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the State recognized pension expense on behalf of the District in the
amount of $6,070,803 and the District recognized pension expense and revenue for that same amount in the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 ftnancial statements.

The State reported collective deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Amortization Defened Deferred
Period Outflows of Inflows of

in Years Resources Resources

g 1,999,014,013

5,201,079,373

$ 19,039,817

321,224,871

5.0 7,305,927,430

(770,568,242)

-0

Changes in Assumptions - 2014
Changes in Assumptions - 2015

Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience - 2014

Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience - 2015

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual
Investment Eamings on Pension Plan Investmenfs - 2014

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual
Investment Eamings on Pension Plan Investments - 2015

8.5

8.3

8.5

8.3

5.0

s 7.s2t ,378,257 $ 399,005
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Note 8. Pension Plans (Cont'd)

B. Teachers' Pension and Annuitv Fund (TPAF) (Cont'd)

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions (Cont'd)

Amounts reported by the State as collective defened outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense excluding that attributable to employer-paid
members contributions as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Total

2016
2017

201 8

2019

2020
Thereafter

$ 818,433,596
818,433,596
818,433,598

1,253,742,742
1,061,100,680
2,196,835,040

s 6,966,979,252

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2015 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of July 1,2014 which was rolled forward to June 30,2015. This actuarial valuation used the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement.

Inflation Rate
Salary Increases:

2012-2021
Thereafter

Investment Rate of Return

250%

Varies based on expenence
Varies based on experience
7.90%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Health Annuitant Mortality Tables for Males or Females, as

appropriate, with adjustments for mortality improvements based on Scale AA. Pre-retirement mortality
improvements for active members are projected using Scale AA from the base year of 2000 until the
valuation date plus 15 years to account for future mortality improvement. Post-retirement mortality
improvements for non-disabled annuitants are projected using Scale AA from the base year of 2000 for
males and2003 for females until the valuation date plus 7 years to account for future mortality improvement.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July l, 2014 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2009 to Jlur:,.e 30,2012.
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Note 8. Pension Plans (Cont'd)

8. Teachers' Pension and Annuitv Fund (TPAF) (Cont'd)

Lons Term Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (7.90%o at

June 30, 20i5) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of
Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the Board of Trustees and the actuaries. The long-term

expected rate of return was determined using a building block in which best-estimate ranges of expected

future real rates of return (expected_retums, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are

developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by

adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included

in PERS' target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015 are summarized in the following table:

Target
Allocation

Long-Term
Expected Real

Rate of
RetumAsset Class

U.S. Cash

U.S. Government Bonds

U.S. Credit Bonds

U.S. Mortgages

U.S. Inflation-Indexed Bonds

U.S. High Yield Bonds

U.S. Equity Market
Foreign-Developed Equity
Emerging Market Equities
Private Real Estate Property
Timber
Farmland
Private Equity
Commodities
Hedge Funds - MultiStrategy
Hedge Funds - Equity Hedge

Hedge Funds - Distressed

Discount Rate - TPAF

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.13o/o as of June 30,2015. This single

blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of
7.90% and a municipal bond rate of 3.80% as of June 30,2015 based on the Bond Buyer Go 20 Bond

Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating

of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that

contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that

contributions from employers will be made based upon the average of the last five years. Based on those

assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future

benefit payments of current plan members through 2027 . Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on

pension plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2027, and the municipal bond

rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

s.00%
L75%

t350%
2.t0%
1.50%
2.00%

21.25%
12.00%
6.40%
4.25%
t.00%
r.00%
9.25%
t.00%
4.00%
4.00%
4.00%

053%
139%
2.72%
254%
1.47%

4.57%

5.63%
6.22%
8.46%
3.97%
4.09%
4.61%
9.15%
3.58%
4.59%
s.68%
4.30%
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Note 8. Pension Plans (Cont'd)

B. Teachers' Pension and Annuitv Fund (TPAF) (Cont'd)

enst of the P Liabili
Chanses in the Discount Rate

The following presents the State's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District
as of June 30, 2015 calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above, as well as what the State's net

pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is l-percentage-point lower or l-
percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

r%
Decrease

Current
Discount Rate

(4.13%)

1%

Increase

(s.t3%)(3 t3%\

Total Net Pension Liability $ tt8,163,174 S 99,425,184 $ 83,281,335

Pension Plan Net Position - TPAF

Detailed information about the TPAF's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued TPAF
financial statements.

C. Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP)

Prudential Financial jointly administers the DCRP investments with the NJ Division of Pensions and

Benefits. If an employee is ineligible to enroll in the PERS or TPAF, the employee may be eligible to enroll
in the DCRP. DCRP provides eligible members with a tax-sheltered, defined contribution retirement benefit,
along with life insurance and disability coverage. Vesting is immediate upon enrollment for members of the

DCRP.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly
available financial reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of
the DCRP. The financial reports may be obtained by writing to the State of New Jersey, Department of the

Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295,Trenton, New Jersey, 08625-0295.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Employee contributions are based on

percentages of 5.50o/o for DCRP of employees' annual compensation, as defined. The DCRP was

established July l, 2007, under the provisions of Chapter 92,P.L.2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 and

expanded under the provisions of Chapter 89, P.L. 2008. Employee contributions for DCRP are matched by
a 3%o employer contribution.

For DCRP, the District recognized pension expense of $72,827 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 201ó.

Employee contributions to DCRP amounted to $23,577 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.
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Note 9. Post-Retirement Benefits

Chapter 3g4 of public Laws 1987 and Chapter 6 of Public Laws 1990 required TPAF and PERS'

respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire after

accumulatin g25 years oi credited service or on a disability retirement. Chapter 103 of Public Law amended

the law to eliminate the funding of post-retirement medical benefits through TPAF and PERS. lt created

separate funds outside of the pensionplans for the funding and payment of post-relirement medical benefits

foi retired State employ".r uìd retired educational ernployees. As of June 30, 2015, tbere were 107,314

retirees receiving pósrietirernent rnedical benefits, and the State contributed $1.25 billion on their behalf.

The cost of these benefrts is funded through contributions by the State in accordance with P.L. 1994, c.62.

Funding of post-retirement rnedical p."rniutor changed from a prefunding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis

beginning in fiscal year 1994.

Tlre State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 c. 126, which provides ernployer paid

benefits to members ãf pBnS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education or

county college with 25 years of service. The state paid $214.1 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for

19,056 eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2015.

The School Employees Health Benefits Program (SEHBP) Act is found in New Jersey Statutes Annotated,

Title 52,Ar1iclá t7.25 et.seq. Rules gou"tning the operation and administration of the program are found in

Title 17, Chapter 9 of the Ñew lersey Administrative Code. The State of New Jersey Division of Pension

and Benefits issues a publically uuuilubl" financial repoú that includes financial statements and required

supplementary informâtion for SEHBP. That report may be obtained from the Treasury website at

lrttp:/www.nj. gov/treasury/pensions/p dfl financial2O I 5combined pdf.

The State,s on behalf post Retirement Medical Contributions to TPAF for the District amounted to

51,523,g28, $1,350,1 12 and $1,094,116 for 2016,2015 and2014, respectively.

Note 10. Deferred Cornpensation

The Board offers its employees a choice of the following defened compensation plans created in accordance

with lnternal Revenue Óode Section a03@). The plans, which are adrninistered by the entities listed below,

permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plans are

not available to employees intil termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The plan

administrators used are:

TO

Note 11. Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of damage to, and destruction of assets;

errors and omissions; injuries to ernployees; and natural disasters. The District obtains its health benefit

coverage through Horizon Blue Cross Blue Shield.
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(Continued)

Note 11. Risk Management (Cont'd)

Propert-y and Li abilit-v Insurance :

The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property, liability, student accident, and surety
bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the Statistical Section of this
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

New Jerse)¡ Unemployment Compensation Insurance:

The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the 'Benefit
Reimbursement Method.

Under this plan, the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits
paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for
amounts due to the State.

The following is a summary of the District contributions, employee contributions, interest earned,
reimbursements to the State for benefits paid, and the ending balance of the District's expendable trust fund
for the current and previous two years:

Fiscal Year

Employer/
Employee

Contributions Interest
Amount

Reimbursed
Ending
Balance

2015-2016
2014-2015
2013-2014

$ 140,712
149,180

t34,t7 5

$ 57,570
60,893
57,347

280
272
271

66,318
46,160
54,232

$ $

Properr-v. Liabilitv and Health Benefits

The Kinnelon Borough School District is a member of the Pooled Insurance Program of New Jersey (the
"Fund"). This public entity risk management pool provides general liability, property and automobile
coverage and workers' compensation for its members. The Kinnelon Borough School District receives only
workers' compensation coverage from the Fund. The Fund is a risk-sharing public entity risk pool that is an
insured and self-administered group of school boards established for the purpose of providing low-cost
insurance for its respective members in order to keep local property taxes to a minimum.

Each member appoints an official to represent their respective entity for the pu{pose of creating a goveming
body from which officers for the Fund are elected.

As a member of this Fund, the District could be subject to supplemental assessments in the event of
def,rciencies. If the assets of the Fund were to be exhausted, members would become responsible for their
respective shares of the Fund's liabilities. The Fund can declare and distribute dividends to members upon
approval of the State of New Jersey Department of Banking and Insurance. These distributions are divided
among the members in the same ratio as their individual assessment related to the total assessment of the
membership body. In accordance with Statement No.10 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
these distributions are used to reduce the amount recorded for membership expense in the year in which the
distribution was declared.
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Note 11. Risk Management (Cont'd)

Tlre June 30,2016 audit report is not available as of the date of this reporl. Selected summarized financial

information for the pooled Insurance Program of New Jersey as of June 30, 2015 is as

follows:
Pooled Insurance

Program of
New Jersev

$ 21,712,514

Year Ended

June 30,2015

Total Assets

Net Position

Total Revenue

Total Expenses and Adjustments

Change in Net Position

Members Dividends

Financial statements for the Fund are available at the Fund Administrator's Office:

$ 703 7

$ 7,287 19

$ 088,877

$ (75,658)

$ t,274,'700

6

Pooled Insurance Program of New Jersey

Burton Agency, Inc.
44 Bergen Street
Westwood, New Jersey 07675
(201) 664-0301

Note 12. Tax Calendar

property taxes are levied as of January I on property values assessed as of the previous calendar year. The

iu* ì.uy is divided into two billings. ihe first 6itting is an estimate of the current year's levy b_ased on the

p.io.-yéur'r taxes. The second biliing reflects adjustments to the current year's actllal^levy. The final tax bill
ir ,ruätty mailed on or before June l4th, along with the first half estimated tax bills for the subsequgnf year.

The firsf half estimated taxes are divided intolwo due dates, February 1 and May 1. The final tax bills are

also divided into two due dates, August I and November 1. A ten-day grace period is usually granted before

the taxes are considered delinquent ãnd there is an imposition of interest charges. A penalty may bg assessed

for any unpaid taxes in 
"*ceri 

of $10,000 at Decem6er 31 of the current year. Unpaid taxes of the current

and prior year may be placed in lien at atax sale held after December 10.

Taxes are collected by the municipality and are remitted to the local school district on a predetermined,

agreed-upon schedule.

Note 13. Contingent Liabilities

Grant Programs

The School District participates in federal and state assisted grant programs. The programs are subject to

program compliance auditiby grantors or their representatives. The School District is potentially liable for

àxpãnditures which may be disallowed pursuant to terms of these grant programs. Management is not aware

ofìny material items oi noncompliance which would result in the disallowance of program expenditures'
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Note 13. Contingent Liabilities (Cont'd)

Litigation

The District is periodically involved in pending lawsuits. The District estimates that the potential claims
against it resulting from such litigation and not covered by insurance would not materially affect the financial
statements of the District.

Arbitrage

The District may have a liability for arbitrage payable to the federal governments relative to its school bond
issues. The amount of liability at June 30,2076, if any, is unknown.

Encumbrances

At June 30,2016, there were encumbrances as detailed below in the governmental funds.
Special Total

General Revenue Governmental
Fund Fund Activities

$ 345,991 _$___8,880_ $ 354,871

On the District's Governmental Fund Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014, $-0- is assigned for year-end
encumbrances in the Special Revenue Fund. On the GAAP basis, actual encumbrances of $8,880 are not
recognized until paid and are reflected as either a reduction in grants receivable or an increase in unearned
revenue in the Special Revenue Fund.

Note 14. Economic Dependenc)¡

The Board of Education receives support from federal and state governments. A significant reduction in the
level of support, if this were to occur, may have an effect on the Board of Education's programs and
activities.

Note 15. Interfund Receivables and Payables:

L

The District had the following interfunds payables or receivables as of Jun e 30, 2016
Interfund

Fund Receivable

General Fund
Special Revenue Fund
Enterprise Fund - Food Service
Payroll Agency Fund

$ 28,223 $

15,242

s 43,465 $ 43,465

Interfund
Payable

15,242

16,075

12,148

The interfund activity between the Payroll Agency Fund and the General Fund is due to excess funds
transferred to cover payroll expenses. The interfund due from the General Fund to the Enterprise Fund is due
to a refund collected in the General Fund and not tumed over by year end. The interfund activity between
the General Fund and the Special Revenue Fund is due to the timing of the collection of Federal grant
receipts.
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Note 16. Operating Lease Pa)¡able

Tlre District has commitments to lease copiers under operating leases which expire in2020- Future

minimum lease paynents are as follows:

Year Ending

June 30, 2017

June 30,2018
June 30, 2019

June 30, 2020

June 30,2021

Total future minimum lease payments

Amount

$ 60,804

60,804

60,804

60,804

35,617

$278,827
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L-1

BOARD OF

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SCHEDULES

OF DI TE SHARE OF

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS

UNAUDITED

District's proportion of the net pension liability

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability

District's covered employee payroll

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability as a

percentage of its covered employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension

liability

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,

2015 2016

0.0406411168% 0.043721076s%

$ 7,609,140 $ 9,814,506

$ 3,155,047 $ 3,306,119

241.11% 296.86%

s2.08% 4793%

Note: This schedule does not contain ten years of information as GASB No. 68 was implemented during the fiscal

year ended June 30,2015.
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KINNELON BOARD OF EDUCATION - SPECIAL

REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SCHEDULES

SCHEDULE OF DI CT CONTRIBI]TIONS

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS

UNAUDITED

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution

Contribution defi ci ency/(excess)

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,

201s 2016

s 327,943 $ 375,884

(327,943) (375,884)

$ 0-$ -0-

District's covered employee payroll $ 3,155,047 $ 3,306,119

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 10.39% 11.37%

Note: This schedule does not contain ten years of information as GASB No. 68 was implemented during the fìscal

year ended June 30,2015.
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KINNELON BOARD OF EDUCATION - SPECIAL

REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SCHEDULES
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

TEACHERS'PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND
LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS

UNAUDITED

2015 2016

State's proporlion of the net pension liability attributable to the District 0.1627893584Yo 0.1573071311%

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability attributable to the District $ 84,305,810 S 99,425,204

District's covered employee payroll $ 76,525,825 $ 16,880,904

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability attributable to the District as a

percentage ofits covered employee payroll 510.15% 588.98%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage ofthe total pension

liability 33.64% 28.71%

Note: This schedule does not contain ten years of information as GASB No. 68 was implemented during the fiscal year ended

June 30,2015.



Page 7l

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2016
ruNAUDITED)

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Benefit Chanses

There were none.

Changes of Assumptions

The discount rate changed from 5.39% as of June 30, 2014 to 4.90%o as of June 30, 2015
changed from 3.01% as of June 30,2014to3.04Yo as of June 30,2015.

B. TEACHERS PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND

Benefit Changes

There were none.

Changes of Assumglions

The discountrate changed from 4.68% as of June 30,2014to 4.13%o as of June 30,2015

The inflation rate
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KJNNELON BOROUGII SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDCETARY BASIS

GENERAL FUND
FÔÞ'TIJtr FIq'AI VtrAÞ tr\INtrN III\Itr ?A AN1Á

(UNAUDITED)

IIEVENUES:
Local Sources:

L,ocal 'l'ax l-evy
'l'L¡ition - Other LEAs
M iscel Iancous

'l-otal - I-ocal Sor¡rces

Statc SoLrrccs:
-l-rarrsportation 

Aìd

Spccial lìducation Aid
Sccrrrit-v,4id

I)ÂRCC Readiness Aicl

I)cr PLrpil Gror.vth Aid
Extraordinary Aid
Additjonal Nonpublrc School Transportation Aid
On-BchallTPAF Pensiorr Payments (Non-Budgered)

On-Behall''IPAF Post Retiroment Medical Bcnetìts (Non-BLrdgcted)
TPAF Social Seourity Contributions (Reimbursed - Non-Budgeted)

'l'otal Statc Sources

I'O1'AI- REVENUES

$ 33.389,621

95, r 99

208.847

(6.201)

8,347

Original
Budget

$ 33,389.621

l 0l .400
200,500

ìì ÁQr i?r

|,689.272

3 5.i 80.79i

Budget

Transfers

Final

Budget

$ 33,389,621

101.400

200,500

33,69t.s21

1.689.272

ìi ìR0 7ql

Actual

33.693.661

6.064,360

39.758.027

Variance

Final to Actual

2.t46

$

l 93.798

I.080.57 t

165,r59

20, I 85

20, I 85

209,314

I 93,798

r .080,5 7 I

l6i t5q

20,1 85

20, I 85

209.314

l 93,798

1.080,57 I

165.t59

20.1 8s

20.1 8s

543,847

I t,658

I,279.834
I i)ì arR

I .225.t95

334.473

il,658
1.279,834

|,523,928
t.225.195

4.i 75 ^08 8

4.377.234

Þ
0eo{u)



Exhibit C-l
2of12

KßINELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY BASIS

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2016

(UNAUDITED)

EXPI--N DI'I'LJIìES:

CLJRRENT EXP[]NSll
Rcgular Prograrris - Instruction:

Kirrdcrgartcn - Salaries ol"feachers

Grades I -5 - Salaries o1'feachers

Grades 6-8 - Salarics ofTeaclrers

Graclcs 9- t2 - Salaries ol'l-eachers

Rcgular Prograrns - I Ionlc lnstrlletion:

Salaries ol"l-eachcrs

I)urchased Profèssional - Edt¡cational Services

Rcgular Prograrrs - Undjstributed lnstruction:

Otllcr S¿larics lôr lnstruction

Purchased Profèssional - Educational Servrces

Othcr Purchasr'd Scrvices

General SLrpplies

l-cxtbooks

Other Ob.jects

Total RegLrlar Programs - Instruction

r 7.000

t57,t40
244,553

ó80.21 3

73.6t4
600

( l 0,000)
(43.500)

I t.932
46.5 I 8

(3.463)

7,000

l 13"640

25 6,48 5

726,73t
70.1 5 1

600

2,219

l 00,834

234,290

631 .949
66,356

)ö/

s 28 1.073

3,248.891

2,888.485

3 ,916,37 |

r5.3 l0
54.5 l4
3t.r95

l 00,855

l9
451

2.343

3-7'7

Original
Budget

Budget

Transfers

Final

Budset

296,383

3,303,41 I

2,919,680

4.077,226

50,766

9,443

I 1,83t,516

Actual

296,364

3,302,960

2.917,33'7

4.07 6,849

50 765

6.s90

I l,692.895

Variance

Final to Actual

s $ $ $

47.000

10.000

3 .166
(557)

I

2,853

4,181

12,806

22,195

8 8,782
ì 7q5

218

138 62t| 1.624.946 206.57 0

Þ
oa
c0{À



Exhibit C-l
3of12

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY BASIS

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED.IUNE 3O.20I6
(UNAUDITED)

Original
Budeet

Budget

Transfers

Final

Budget

2t2.188
76.628
ì ì7ì

292.189

59.65 5

59,65 5

Actual
Variance

Final to Actual

Spccial Education - Instruction:

ì.,carn ing ancl/or [,anguzrge Disabi I ities

Salarics o1''fcachers

Otllcr Sal¡rics lìrr Instrtretiol

Gencral Supplics

'l-otal l-carn i n.'s. and/or Lan guage Disab i I i ties

ALrditory lnrpainrents.
Salaries of Teaclrers

'fotal Aud itory I mpairments

Multiple Disabilities:

Salarics of l'eachcrs

Other Salarìes f'or lnstruction

Gencral Supplies

'fotal Multiple Disabilities

Rcsor¡¡ce Roonr/Resource Center

Salaries of Teaclrers

Other Salaries 1-or Instruction

Gcneral Supplies

"fotal Resource Room/Resource Cerrter

Autistic:
Salaries o1''leachers

Othe r Salaries f'or lnstruction

Gcrrcral SLrpplies

Total Autistic

Preschool Disabilitics - Part-lrme:

Salarics ofTeachers

Othcr Salaries fbr Inst¡uctiorr

Gcncral SLrpplies

'fo1al Prcschool Disabilities - Part-timc

s r 83.390

86;194

3.1 70

29.398 S

( 1 0.1 66)

203

)t) 1)'7
'76.622

3.235

$ $ s 6l
6

138

273.354 r 9.43 5

64,355 (4,700)

64,35s (4,700)

?ìô 4r)

1,808,547

252.t',l0
12.263

2.072,980

127,0t0
48.7 63

6,908

182.68 r

6 r ,055

35,642

1.500

(4,030)

64,906

I 08.282

6.236

179.424

(122)

50,704
(3,700)

46.282

23.412
8,862
) 505

t26.288
99 467

3.208

r 26,068

99,403

3.208

228.679

20,s

980

980

319

lr9

660

I

661

220

284

451

452

226.382

I,873,453

360.452

l8 499

) )\) 40,4

292,584

58 675

5 8.675

226.063

|,872,193
360,45 I

t8,499

2,2st,743

t70.432
5 8,5 28

t.457

(l6.r9r)
t2.354

(r93)

154.241
70 561

1,259

154.241

70,882
1 tiq

64

228,963

84.467

44,504

005

84,01 6

44,503

4,0054

98.t97 34.779 132,976 132,s24

27t

0a
(D

\ì

'l'otal Spccial Ilducation Instrì-lction )a)r q7q r90 3,r93,169 3,t90,268 2,901
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BUDCETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY BASIS

GENERAL FUND

FOR TI'IE FISCAL YEAR ENDED .'UNE 30. 20 I6
(UNAUDITED)

Original
Budget

Budget

Transfèrs

(69,690)

Final

Budset Actual

Variance

Final to Actual

Llasic Skills/Rcnredial - Instruction

Salaries of' l-eachers

Cencral Supplies

l-otal Basic Skills/Remedial - Instruction

Bilingual lldtrcation - Instmction

Salaries of'l'eachers

General Supplics

'l-otal Bilingual llducation - lnstruct¡on

School-Sponsored Cocurricular Activities - Instruction

Salaries

Supplies and Materials

Other Ob.jccts

Total School-Sponsored Cocur¡icLrlar Activities - Instruction

School-Sponsored Coct¡rricular Athletics - Instruction

Salaries

Purchased Services

Supplies and Matcrials

Other Ob.jccts

'lotal School-Sponsored Cocurricular Athletics - Instructio¡.t

Totll Ilrstruction

3.488
( l r,799)
(r,105)

(r3,710)

3,493

z,t t3
6,916

20,184

s 4t9.915
i-Ò/ô

472.803

38, l 64

750

38,914

2t4.896
9,000

3,45 5

227 .35 t

472.881

r34.1 l6
92,438
50 lqO

7 49.825

r5,985.818

$ (68,520) $

( 1,1 70)

351.455

1.658

$ 3 50,048

t,242

351.290

3 8,25 6

229

38.485

)ìt 5??

? 756

,, ôq5

25 8.3 78

472,876
120,204

84,411

t6.496

t,407
416

s

353,1 l 3

6qì qq'ì

16.22s.309

ö¿)

l0

ll

2,969

4,052
6,693

13.1 t4

32.706

t89.77 6

93

(s l r)

(41 8)

20,600

(1,192)
?i ìll

44,7 4l

'ìr )57

239

3 8.496

235.496

7.808

28.788

212,097

47 6,369

t22,311

9 t.333

36.680

(23.t26) 126,699

4)q )61 t6,4 r5,085

ÊD

oa
CD\ì
o\
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KINNELON BOROUGI-I SCI-]OOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDCETARY BASIS

GENERAL FUND
FOR 1-HE FISCAL YEAR ENDED.IUNE 3O.20I6

(UNAUDI'IED)

Original
Budeet

Budget

Transfèrs

(287,809)

28,975
(s2.2t7)

t92,445

(t 18.60 r)

0.279)

(1.279)

t0,237
'7 04)
(887)

16.392

Final

Budget Actual

r 3 r.046
I 56 37i

t.611

ù/ t.oJt
32,306

I .198.98 I

12.936

t2,936

Variance

Final to Actual
Und istribLrtcd ExpenditLrres:

Instmction:
-l-uition 

to Olher I-EAS Within the Stare - Special
'fuition to Count;, Vocatìonal School District - Regular
Tuition to Count.v Vocationai School Distrìct - Special
'fuition to Private Schools fbr the Handicapped - Within State
'l-t¡ition Statc Facilities

Total Undistributed Expcnditurcs - Instrr-rction.

Attendance & Social Work:

S al aries

-fotal 
Attendance & Social Work

Health Services:

Sal aries

Purchased Profbssional and Technical Services

Supplies and Materials

l-otal I-lcalth Services

Othcr Support Scrvices - Students Speech O'f, PT and Related Services:

Sal arics

PLrrchased I)rof'essional Educational Services

Supplies and Materials

'l-otal Othcr Support Services - Students Speech OT, PT and Related Services

Other SLr¡rport Scrvices - Str¡dcnts - Iixtraordinar¡' Services:

Salarìes

l)t¡rchascd Prol'cssional - Educational Scrvices

418,855

127.400

54,000

6 85.5 52

32.306

l3 I .046
l 56.375

1.788

877.997

32,306

s $ s $

$ 171

360

r,3r8.ul

14.215

449,6t0
24,000

10,659

484,269

4s3,057

31,042
q 1?5

531

6,790

447

'7.237

940

940

|,547
350

1.t99.5t2

12,936

t2 936

459,847

3l,042
Q -77)

500.66 l

t4.2ts

460. r 00

14,945

5.499

(t2.264)
t3.120

1.894

447,836
28,665

5.937

482.438

4t2,198
237

493,424

446.896

28,665
5 q?7

48t,498

4t t,251
236,761

480.544

590,8 73

225.83 3

( l 78,075)

11 ,278 lll

rú
ÊD

oq
(D

ìì

I'otal Olhcr SLrpport Services - Students - Extraordinary Services 8 r 6.706 (t66,797) 649.909 648.0t2 r.897
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KiNNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDCETARY COMPARISON SCI-IEDULE - BLJDGETARY BASIS

GENERAI- FIJNI)
FaìÞ -tljtr çIaa 

^ 
I VË 

^ 
D trNrñf n rr r\rË ?^ în r /-

(UNAUDI'IED)

Original
Budgct

$ 7?? Aìi
I 08.480

4,250

I 8,837

854,500

978,49t

458,8 I 7

3 8.404

8.000

3,825

6,963

3,175

5t9.184

Budget
'franstèrs

Final

Budget

726.159

l 08.480

626
)n tì7

8 5 5.602

I r 7,899

88. r 70

t4,954
22,3s0
t4,226
10.239

r,843

969,68t

4't 4 72'7

Actual

Variance

Final to Actual

Other Support Services - Students - Cuidance.

Salarics of Other Profèssional Stafï
Salaries ol-Secretarial and Clerical Assistants
Other Pt¡rchased Prolèssional and Technical Services

Supplies and Materials

'fotal Other Support Services - Students - Cuidance

Other SLrpport Services - Students - Child Sttrdy Team:

Salanes of'Other Profèssional Stafl'
Salaries of Sccretarial and Clerical Assistants
Purchased Profèssional - Educatìonal Services

Other Purchased Profèssional and Technical Serviccs

Misccllaneor¡s Purchased Serviccs

Supplics and Materials

Other Ob.jccts

'l-otal Other SLrpport Serviccs - Stude nts - Child Study Team

Inrprovenrcnt ol' Instrt¡ctional Services.

Salarics ol' Str¡rcrvisor ol Instruction

Salaries ol'Other Profèssional Statl'
Purchascd Prol'essional - Educationaì Services

Other PLrrchascd Services

Supplics and Materials

Othcr Ob.jects

'l-otal Inrprovcmcnt of Instrrrctional Scrviccs

812,107
R5 170

35,000

14.87 5

r6.364
l t,89s
2.880

i ?q)

2,800
(20,046)

'7.475

(2,138)

( l ,656)
(1.037)

8 I 7.899

88,1 1 5

14,303

2t .67 5

13,535

9,810

1.843

55

6sl
675

69t
429

s 3.226 $ 126.1s9

r08,480

300

19,246

(3.624)

l,500

(8.8 r0)

(44.457)

326

l .091

S

$

t,102 854, I 85

967 180

340,807

42.825
'76,363

) )5ît

4,984
) -ta)

469,981

I,4t7

t 5ô1

4.7 46

( l l 7.800)

4.425

72,363
( l ,265)
( ì,780)

(400)

34t,011
42,829

80,3 63

2,560

5,1 83

2.77 5

2t0
4

4,000

310

199

L1

Þ
oc
(D

\ì
oo
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY BASIS

GENERAI, FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED.IUNE 30.20I6
(UNAUDITED)

Original
Budeet

BLrdget

Transfèrs

Final

Budset Actual

Va¡iance

Final to Actual

Educational Med ia Services/School Library:

S alaries

Salaries of Tcchnolog¡, Coordinators

Supplies and Matcrials

Other Ob.iects

-fotal Educational Medra Scrvices/School Library

lrrstructional StafT Training Serviccs:

Salaries ol Other Profèssìonal StalI

Purchasecl Profèssional - Educational Services

Other Purchased Services

SLrpplics and Materials

-lotal lnstruclional StalT 
-f 

rain ing Services

Supporl Services - General Administration

S al aries

I-,cga1 Serviccs

Ar¡ciit lìccs

Othcr Purchased Prof'essional Services

Conrnl un i cat i ons/Telcp lrono

Il()l: Uthcr I)ureh¿sed Scrviccs

Purcìrascd Scrvices

Gcncral SLrpplics

MisccllaneoLrs Expendrttrrcs

llOE Menlbcrshi¡r Dtrcs and Iìecs

'lìrtal Support Serviccs - (ìcncral Adnlinistratiorr

$ a301.247

1 45,1 43

\) 611

)'t 400

526,467

8,000

3 r,000

40,215

4,000

83,27 5

306.248

l 69,393
a) 411

1.799

536.0 I 7

) \)1
49,330

42,242

200

o¿ )aa

514.163

304,247

| 69 ,361
48,820

2.800

525,234

1,794

t] ,2t0
38,470

t67

57 641

2,00 r

26

3,1 57

4.999

5,00 r s
)4 )\ît

(100)
( r9.60 l )

q 55ô

(s,473)
18,330

|,961
(3,800)

l.074

s $

238,1 06

42,000

40.8 7 5

6,500

76.800

1,000
)) 1Q)

5,400

2 000

2t,6t5
(3,375)

2,000

45,0 I 0

(62s)

(3,228)
(2,4 l 0)

r.938

500

238,106

63.61 5

37,500

8.5 00

l2l ,8 l0
375

l 9,564
? qqO

3.938

18.365

228,97 |

63,61 s

3 7,5 00

8,079

1t4,732
310

18,670

2,964
'ì gl6

18,362

I 0,783

133

32.t20
3,772

33

3 6,65 8

17.564

17 865

9,1 35

421

7,078

5

894

26

2

3

453,338 6t,425 497,199

eD
0e
(D

{



KINNELON BOROUGFI SCHOOL DISTRICl'

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY BASIS

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.20I6
(UNAUDITED)

Original
Budeet

1.512.222

403,546

8 1.520

8 l .520

Budget

Transfers Actual

| .645,241

390.213

8 t,520
8 I ,520

Varìance

Final to Actual

Exhibit C-l
8 of 12

2,996

363

5,81 7

791

179

11.146

2

i 17?

1

l,l 54

43

469

r 0,04 l

Final

Budget

Support Services - School Administration.

Salaries ol Principals/Assìstant Principals

Salaries ol Secretarial and Clerical Assistants

Purchased Profèssional and l'echnical Services

Othcr PLrrchased Services

Supplies and Materials

Other Ob.jects

Total Support Servrces - School Administratjon

Cerrtral Serviccs:

Salarics

Purchased Protèssional Services

Purchased'fechn ical Services

VisccllaneoLrs PLrrchased Servìccs

Supplics and Materials

Othcr Ob.iccts

'l'otal Ccntral Services

Adnr i n ist ra1 ion I n f 

'orrriatiorr -l-eclr 
nology':

S al ari cs
'l'otal Aclnrirristration I n fòrnration'fechnology

r.038,5 70

364,850

12,3 50

68,690

18,492

9.270

r , I 60,095

388,510

I 1,987

60,984

l 5.r 63

8,5 08

$s t) 1 i?i
26.656

1, I 60,095

39 I,506
r 2,350

66,80 l
15,954

9.687

1.656.393

278.617

66,714

25,701

15,082
o r )i
4.955

400,254

8 I,520
8 1,520

$ S

$

( r.88e)
(2,s3 8)

4t1

277,998

74,000

25,000
r1 )ì5
7,500

5.813

6r9
(7.226)

101

1,847

t.625

(858)

278,615

61,402

25,700

t3,928
9,082
1.486

| 44.17 |

(i.z9z)

oao
oÐ
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KINNELON BOROUCH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDCETARY COMPARISON SCI-IEDULE - BUDGETARY BASIS

GENERAL FUND
aa VË Þ trNt nÊ ñ II INIE

(UNAUDIT'ED)

Original
Budget

Budget

Transfèrs

Variance

Final to ActualActual

91,355

220,507

14.606

326,468

19.43 I

2.260.371

168.3 l4

4.240

Final

Budset

Requircd Maintenance of School Facilities:

Sal arics

Cleanìrrg. Iìepair and Maintenarìce Scrvices

Ceneral Supplics

-l-otal 
Requircd Maintenance of School Facilitles

Custodral Services:

S al aries

Purchased Profèssion¿rl and Teclrn ical Services

C I can i n,e,. lìcpa i r arrcl Mai nten ance Serv i ccs
()lhcr I)L¡rcllascd Propert¡ Serviccs

I nst¡ ran cc

Gcncral Sup¡rlics

Encrgl' (Elcctricit,v)

I:ncrev (Natural Gas)

l:ncrg1 (Cìasoì inc)

Othcr Ob.jccts

lntcrcst - Lncrg_v Savings Irnl)rovcmer'rt Progranl lJonds

1.152,627

34,950

89,200

90,8 r 3

I 95.000

1 28.543

643.877

2 14.000

40.000

( r 8.522)

r 1,235

(22,8 l 0)

6,r30
22.528

(5,296)

( 226.s 5 8)

(44.000)

(40.000)

r9.680

( 18.405)

I.l34.r0s
46, I 8s

66.390

96.943

217,528

t23.247

4t1 .319
l 70.000

1,t25,897

43,956

65,249

94,906

2t7.528
l\7.36t
406.288

t69.76t

s 107,123
I?i ì ìR

17,300

250.36 I

18.405

2.60"t .4t5

192.t34

( I 4.930)

98.727
( r .975)

8 1.822

(3 l 6,01 8)

9.071

Ò.J ÒJ

q? 7aì
224.065

ti ìri

332, l 83

19,680

) ,ql 1q7

1,438

ì 55R

719

$ s s $

5,7 t5

8,208
) ))a
I.l4 t

) nì?

5,886

1 1,03 I

239

'lìrtal CLrstodial Scrviccs

249

3l 020

32.897

4.143

Care and lJpkccp o1'Grounds:

S alarics

Clcarrirrg. tìcpair & Maintenance Scrvices

Gcncral Supplics

-lbtal 
Care and Upkecp of Crounds

Sccu rity:

Gencral Supplics

99.373

51,400

4t.361

(8.000)

20.071
(3.000)

qt 'ì55

45,418

3 t.541

l8
26,059

6.820

91,373

7 t.477
38.361

201 .2t I

8.3 83

ûa
(D

oo

Total Sccurity 8.3 83 0,J0) 4,240 4,143



KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISI'RICT
BUDCETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE. BUDGETARY BASIS

GENERAL FUND
FOR TIIE FISCAL YEAR ENDED .IUNE 30. 20 I6

(UNAUDITED)

Exhibit C-l
l0 of 12

Variance

Final to Actual

I 3,01 I

r q 5'ìs

I

406,807

64.000

l 08,401

800,076

1t2.690
iìi tq6

94.000

2,800

69.240

700

2. r93,9 I 0

442.500

3 69.5 00

7.000

l 7ó,1 95

4"461 ,935
l 53,000

800

76.3I8

5,693,3 r 8

34.98s S

8.03 7

(22,6r)

(41 ,000)
(40.36s)

( r 5.000)

(33,000)

( r 08.954)

6.200
ro riS

(2s.969)
(73,865)

(2,000)

363
17 0001

( 83.0 l 6)

441;792

12,037

8 5,790

800,07 6

71 .690
494,83r
79.000

2.800

36,240

700

2,084,956

Actual

428,78t
s2,498
85,7 89

796,948

46,601

47 4,7 84

64,87 8

1.861

3 5.900
600

r.988.640

443,009

384,257

64 993

5.582.t24

Original
Budget

Budget

Transfers

Final

Budget

Student Transportation Services:

Salaries Pupìl Transportatron l lome and School Rcgular

Cìeaning. Rcpair. & Maintenance Services

l-ease PL¡rchase Pa¡rmcnts - School Buses

Contracted Services:
'l-ransportation Servrces - Betlveen I Ior¡e and School
'l'ransportation Serviccs - Between Honle and School Other
'l'ransportation Services - Special Ëducalion-ESC's & C'l'SA's
'l'ransportalion Serviccs - Aid in Lieu-Nonpublic Students

M isccllarrcous Purchasecl Scrvices- Transportatior.ì

Gcncral Supplìcs

Othcr Ob.jccts

'l'otal Studcnt'l'ransportation Services

LJnaf locatcd Ilcnclits.
Social Sccuritl' Contributions

Othcr lìctircnrcnt Cìontributìons - PERS

LJncnr¡rlo--vmcn1 Corlpcrrsation

Workrrcn's Conrpensation

I-lcaltlr Bencfits
'l-Lr ition RcimbLrrser¡ent

Othcr l:nrplo.vee Benelìts

Unuscd Sick Paynrent to l-erminated/Relired StafT

-l-otal 
I Jnallocatcd l]enefìts

$S $ $

3,1 28

25,089

20,047

t4,122
939

340

r00

96.i r6

448,700
IRR 7i5

7,000

150,226

4.394,070

r 51,000

I,t63
69.388

5,69 I

4,498

7.000

150,226

4.393,431

I 45,045

t.163

639
i qsi

4.39s

28,1185,6t0}02

ÊD
oeo
oê
N)



KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY BASIS

GENERAL FIJND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JLINE 30.2016

(UNAUDITED)

Actual

$ 1,279,834

t,s23,928
1.22s.19s

4.028.957

9.611.081

22.682.37 |

38.907.680

2,097

36"900

234,t63
89,22r

362,3 8l

58.082

58.082

273

273,737

694.200

Variance

Final to Actual

Exhibit C-l
I I of 12

(1,279,834)
(1,s23,928)
(1.225.195\

@.028.9s7)'

ø ooo 779\

(3.725.227\

(3.535.45 1)

On-Behalf Contributions :

On-Behalf TPAF Pension Contributions (Non-Budgeted)

On-Behalf TPAF Post Retirements Medical Benefits (Nonbudgeted)

Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions (Nonbudgeted)

Total On-Behalf Contributions

Total Personal Services - Employee Benefits

Total Undistributed Expenses

TOTAL CURRENT EXPENSE

CAPITAL OUTLAY
Equipment:

Grades 6-8

Grades 9-12

Undistributed Expenditures - Non-instructional Services

Undistributed Expenditures - Security

Undistributed Expenditures - Required Maintenance for School Facilities

Total Equipment

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services:

Assessment for Debt Service on SDA Funding

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services

Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases (non-budgeted):

Student Transportation

Total Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases (non-budgeted)

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources/(Uses):

Capital Leases (non-budgeted)

Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses)

Original
Budget

19.463.528

35.449.346

6,000

3,840

89,221

270,03s
47 754

4 1 6,850

58.083

58.083

474.933

35.924.279

Budget

Transfers

Final

Budget

s

$ s"693.318 $ (83.016) $ 5.610.302

(506"384) 18.957.144

(77.117\ 35.372.229

(3,903)

20,979

(4,s67)

23,142
41,467

2,097

24,819

84,654

293,177

89,221

493,968

58,082

58.082

552.050

24,819
47,'154

59,014

77 118

(1)

(1)

35.924.279 39.60 1.880

156,147

273

l3l,587

(273.737)

(273.737)'

142.150).

ß.677.601\

699,633

273

77,117

Þ
oao
oo
(!

(543.486) (s43.486)

273.737 273,737
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY BASIS

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JLINE 30. 20I6

(UNAUDITED)

Original
Budget

$ (s43,486)

2,237.761

$ 1,694,27s

Budget

Transfers Actual

429,884

2,237,761

$ 1"1 19,539

34s,99r
r 50,000

I .0s2.1 I s

2"667,645

(1 38.959)

$ 2.528.686

Va¡iance

Final to Actual
Final

Budget

Excess (Deficiency) ofRevenues and Other Financing Sources

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

Recapitulation:

Restricted for:

Capital Reserve

Assigned:

Year-end Encumbrances

For Subsequent Year's Expenditures

Unassigned

Reconciliation to Govemmental Funds Statements (GAAP):

Final Two State Aid Payments not recognized on GAAP basis

Fund Balance per Govemmental Funds (GAAP)

s (s43,486) S

2.237,76t

g 973,370

$ -0- s 1.694.27s S 2.667 .64s S 973.370

Þ
oeo
ooÞ
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY BASIS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2016

GJNAUDITED)

Exhibit C-2

Variance

Final to Actual
Original
Budget

Budget
Transfers

Final

Budget Actual

REVENUES:
State Sou¡ces

Federal Sources

Local Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Instruction:

Salaries ofTeachers

Tuition

General Supplies

Textbooks

Other Objects

Total lnstruction

Support Services:

Personal Services - Employee Benefit

Purchased Professional Services

Total Support Services

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) ofRevenues Over (Under)

Expenditures

s 2,478

483,320

86,298

(8e0)

(l 3,3 14)
$ 1,200

399,029

2,168

97,60s
86,298

3,368

496,634

86,298

$ $ $

400,229 I 86,071 s86,300 572,096 (r4,204)

30,878

322,805
11,481

971

21,107

408,378
l7,331

948

86,298

786

85,573

6,728

31,664

408,378

18,209

971

86,298

l0,s 5 7

878

23

86,298

366,135 179,385 545,520 534,062 1 1,458

30,721 6,686

3,373

37,407

3,373

34,661 2,746

34,094 6,686

186,071

40,780 38,034 2,746

400,229 586,300 572,096 14,204

$ -0- s -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0-
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NOTE TO RSI

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.20I6
(UNAUDITED)

General

Fund

Exhibit C-3

Special

Revenue

Fund

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary lnflows and Outflows and

GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/lnfl ows of Resources

Actual Amounts (Budgetary Basis) "Revenue"
from the Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Differences - Budget to GAAP.
Grant Accounting Budgetary Basis Differs from GAAP ìn that the

Budgetary Basis Recognizes Encumbrances as Expenditures and

Revenue, Whereas the GAAP Basis does not
Prior Year State Aid Payments Recognized for GAAP Purposes, not

Recognized for Budgetary Statements

Current Year State Aid Payments Recognized for Budgetary Purposes, not
Recognized for GAAP Staternents

Total Revenues as Reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances - Govemmental Funds.

$ 39,758"027 $ s72.096

(8,464)

142,177

( 1 3 8,9s9)

s 39,161 ,24s _$_!!1É1?_

Uses/Outflows of Resources:

Actual Amounts (Budgetary Basis) "Total Outflows" from the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Differences - Budget to GAAP
Encumbrances for Supplies and Equiprnent Ordered but

Not Received are Reported in the Year the Order is Placed for
Budgetary Purposes, but in the Year the Supplies are Received
for Financial Reporting Purposes.

$ 39,601 ,880 $ 5',t2,096

(8,464)

Total Expenditures as Reported on the Statement ofRevenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 39,601,880 g 563,632

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue and debt service funds. The budgets for the fiscal
year ended June 3 0, 2016, were submitted to the County office and were approved by a vote of the Board of Education. Budgets are prepared using the
modified accrual basis ofaccounting. The legal level ofbudgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are
defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:20-2A.2(m)1.
Transfers of appropriations may be made by School Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year. All budgetary amounts presented in the
accompanying supplementary information reflect the original budget and the amended budget (which have been adjusted for legally authorized revisions
ofthe annual budgets during the year).

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the year. For govemmental funds, there æe
no substantial differences between budgetary basis ofaccounting and generally accepted accounting principles, with the exception ofthe Special Revenue
Fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension offormal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types.
Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records ofthe special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis, The grant accounting budgetary basis differs
from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognízes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenue, whereas the
GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

The General Fund budgetary revenue differs from GAAP revenue due to a difference in recognition ofthe last two state aid payments for the current year
Since the State is recording the last two state aid payments in the subsequent fiscal year, the District cannot recognize these payments on the GAAP
financial statements.
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SPECIAL REVENUE FLIND

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JTJNE 30.2016

No Child Left Behind

IDEA
Part B
BasicTitIE IIA Title I

REVENUE:

State Sources

Federal Sources

Local Sources

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:

Salaries ofTeachers

Tuition
Gene¡a1 Supplies

Textbooks

Other Miscellaneous

IDEA
Part B

Preschool

12,974

J,J /J

3,373

Non-Public
Nursing

$ 1,530

s

$ 33,131

33,131 S 24,464 $ 409,378 S 16,347

s 24,464 $ 409,378 S 16,347 S 1,s30

$ 8,133

16,331

24,464

408,378

r,000

409,378

s 12,974

$

Total Instruction

Support Services:

Personal Service - Employee Benefit

Purchased Professional Services

Total Support Services

Total Expenditures

$

s

33, l3 1

33,r31

S 1,530

1,530

33,131 524,464$409,378516,347$1,530

Þ
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Exhibit E-1

2 of2
KINNELON BOROUGI{ SCHOOL DISTRICT

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JTINE 30. 20I6

REVENUE:
State Sources

Federal Sources

Local Sources

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:

Salaries ofTeachers
Tuition
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Miscellaneous

Non-Public
Textbook

$ 948

Local
Grants

s 86,298

$ 86,298

86.298

Totals
June 30,

2016

$ 2,478
483,320
86,298

21,107
408,378

t7,331
948

86,298

534,062

$ 948S86,29855',72,096

$

s 948

948Total Instruction

Support Services:

Personal Service - Employee Benefìt
Pu¡chased Professional Services

Total Support Services

Total Expenditures

5,J IJ
34,661

38,034

$ 948 $86,2985572,096

0q
(D

oê



Page 90

CAPITAL PROJECTS F'UND
(NOT APPLICABLE)
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PROPRIETARY F'UI{DS
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Exhibit G-l
KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

ENTERPRISE FUND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30.2016

Food
Service

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Total
Enrichment Enterprise

FundsASSETS:

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable:

Federal

State

Interfund Receivable

Inventories

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets:

Capital Assets

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Total Non-Current Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Current Liabilities:
Prepaid Sales

Unearned Revenue

Total Current Liabilities

NET POSITION:

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

s 44,325 $ 215,426 s 259,751

4,343
292

15,242

1 0,61 8

4,343

292

15,242

10,618

74,820 215,426 290,246

401,542
(337, l so)

401,s42
(337, l s0)

70,392 70,392

145,212 215,426 360,638

12,192
3,209

12,192
3,209

15,401 15,401

70,392
59,419 215,426

70,392
274,845

$ 129,811 $ 275,426 S 345,237
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENTERPRISE FIJND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2016

Exhibit G-2

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Total
Food

Service
Enrichment

Program
Enterprise

Funds
Operating Revenue:

Local Sources:
Daily Sales - Reimbursable Programs
Daily Sales - Non-Reimbursable Programs
Program Fees

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses:
Reimbursable Programs Cost of Sales
Non-Reimbursable Programs Cost of Sales
Salaries, Benefits & Payroll Taxes
Employee Benefits
Management Fee
Professional and Technical Services
Depreciation Expense
Supplies and Materials
Administrative Expenses

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income/(Loss)

Non-Operating Income:
Local Sources:

Interest Income
State Sources:

State School Lunch Program
Federal Sources:

National School Lunch Program
Food Distribution Program

Total Non-Operating Income

Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning of Year

$ 243,341
259,089

$ 300,105

8 243,341
2s9,089
300, I 05

502,430 300, I 05 802,535

t29,151
151,802
229,739

l6,l I I
175

13,995
1,584

33,945

129,151
151,802
416,935

11,799
16,111

175
13,99s
35,536
70,551

187,196
1t,799

33,952
36,606

576,502 269,553 846,055

(74,072) 30,552 (43,520)

1

3,6s4

54,014
19,949

438 439

3,654

54,014
19,949

77,618 438 78,056

3,s46

126,265

30,990

184,436

34,536

310,701

Net Position - End of Year $ 129,811 S 215,426 S 345,237
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Ilxhibit G-3

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

ENTERPRISE,FUNI)

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH IILOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2016

Cash Flows from Operating Actívities:

Receipts from Customers

Payments to Employees

Payments for Benefits

Payments to Suppliers

Payments for Administrative Expenses

Net Cash Provided by(Used for) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities:

Acquisition of Equipment

Net Cash Used for Capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Received from Federal and State Sources

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Interest Earned

Net Cash Flows Provided by lnvesting Activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30

Reconciliation of Operating Income/(Loss) to Net Cash Provided by(Used for) Operating Activities:

Operating Income/(Loss)

Adjustment to Reconcile Operating Income/(Loss) to Net Cash Provided by(Used for) Operating Activities

Federal Food Distribution Program

Depreciation Expense

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

Decrease(lncrease) in Inventory

Increase(Decrease) in Prepaid Sales

Increase/(Decrease) in [.lnearned Revenue

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Investing and Financine Activities:

The District had $769 in USDA donated commodities at June 30,2015, received commodities

valued at 522,389 and used commodities valued at 519,949 and had $3,209 in commodities at June 30, 2016

Business-Type Activities - Enternrise Funds

Non-Ma.jor Funds

Food

Service

504,604

(256,r 10)

Enrichment

Program

$ 300,10s
( 1 87,1 96)

(n,799)
(33,9s2)
(36,606)

Total

Enterprise

Funds

$ 804,709

(443,306)

( I r,799)

(320,94s)

(36,606)

57,094

57,094

439

439

30,986

228,765

_9_22t1_

t9,949
13,995

$

(286,993)

(38,499) 30,552 ('1,947)

(1 8,600) (l 8,600)

( l 8,600)(1 8,600)

57,094

57,094

438

(4)

44,329

438

30,990

184,436

$ 44,325 s 215,426

$ (74,072) $ 30,5s2 $ (43,s20)

t9,949
13,995

(2,985)

2,174

2,440

(2,985)

2,174

2,440

$ (38,49e) $ 30,s52 s (7,947)
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS



KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
FIDUCIARY FI.INDS

JUNE 30.2016

Exhibit H-1

Totals

516,440
100,303

616,743

1,349
12,148

264,757

278,254

15,944
140,712
181,833

$ 338,489

Unemployment
Compensation

Trust

140,712

740,112

s 140,712

Flexible
Spending

Trust

15,944

15,944

Private Purpose

Scholarship
Fund

Agency
Student Activity Payroll

ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Interfund Payable General Fund
Due to Student Groups

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION:

Held in Trust for:
Flexible Spending Claims
Unemployment Claims

Restricted for Scholarships

Total Net Position

s 140,712 $ 15,9+4 S

$ 15,944 $ 181,833 $ -0-

264,757 S 13,497 $

264,757 13,497

7,349
12,148

264,757

264,7 57 13,497

$ -0-

81,530 $

100,303

1 81,833

1 81 ,833

Þ
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

FIDUCIARY FLTNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2016

Unemployment

Compensation

Trust

Flexible

Spending

Trust

Private Purpose

Scholarship

Fund

Page 97

Exhibit H-2

Totals

ADDITIONS:
Contributions:

Plan Members
Donations

Total Contributions

Investment Earnings

Interest

Net Investment Earnings

Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS:
Flexible Spending Claims

Unemployment Compensati on Claims

Scholarships Awarded

Total Deductions

Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning of the Year

Net Position - End of the Year

$ 57,570 s 20,047 $ 77,611

79,500$ 79,500

57,570 20,047 79,500 157,117

280 16 255 551

280 t6 255 551

57,850 20,063 79,755 157,668

)) a)?

42,250

22,423

66,318

42,250
66,318

66,318 )) ¿.)? 42,250 130,991

(8,468) (2,360)

18,304

37,505

144,328

26,677

311,8121 49,1 80

g 140,712 s 15,944 $ 181,833 $ 338,489



KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
ACTIVITY AG

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

Balance

June 30,2015 Additions Deletions

Page 98

Exhibit H-3

Balance

June 30,2016

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Liabilities:
Due to Student Groups

Total Liabilities

$ 238,164 $ 518,930 S 492,331 fi 264,757

s 238,164 $ 518,930 S 492,337 S 264,757

$ 238,164 $ 518,930 S 492,337 S 264,751

$ 238,164 $ 518,930 S 492,337 $ 264,151



KINNELON SCHOOI, DISTRICT

STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY BY SCHOOL

Balance

June 30,2015

Cash

Receipts

Cash

Disbursements

Page 99

H-4

Balance

June 30, 2016

SCHOOLS:

Kiel Elementary School Activity Account

Stony Brook School Activity Account

Pearl R. Miller Middle School Activity Account

Kinnelon High School Activity Account

Kinnelon High School Athletic Account

Kinnelon High School Sport Academy Camp Account

14,250

30,919

48,928

106,783

1,807

35,477

s 22,043

106,087

95,548

I 80,1 96

70,086

44,970

I 5,836

114,948

95,908

172,937

70,643

22,065

20,457

22,058

48,568

114,042

1,250

58,382

$$$

$ 238,164 $ 518,930 s 492,337 s 264,757



KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
PAYROLL AGENCY FUND

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

Balance

June 30, 2015

Page 100

Exhibit H-5

Balance

June 30,2016

ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Interfund Payable General Fund

Total Liabilities

Additions Deletions

$ 15,371 $ 24,896,665 $ 24,898,539 $ 13,497

$ 15,371 $ 24,896,665 $ 24,898,539 $ 13,497

$ 6,576

8,795

1,349

12,148

s 24,893,312

3,353
$ 24,898,539 $

$ 15,371 $ 24,896,665 $ 24,898,539 $ 13,497
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LONG-TERM DEBT



Date of
Issue

Original
Issue

Interest

Rate

4.00Yo

4.00%

Balance

June 30,2015 Matured

Exhibit I-l

Balance

June 30,2016

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
LONG.TERM DEBT

SCHEDULE OF SERIAL BONDS

Maturities of Bonds

Outstanding

June 30,2016
Date AmountPurpose

Improvements to High School

Improvements to High School

Refunding Bond of2002 Issue

Refunding Bond of 1998 Issue 11tr6t0s $ 4,615,000

t2l2'7/06 6,325,000

1t24107 6,329,000

09114110 9,980,000

Refunding Bond of2006/2007 Issues 2110115 11.230,000

10t0Ut6

10t01t17
$ s20,000

515,000

$ 1,560,000 $ 525,000 $ 1,035,000

15,000

1s,000

8,295,000

15,000

15,000

825,000 7,470,000

I 1,230,000 I 1,230,000

t0t1/16

tjl1t17
10t1t18

10t1t19

1011120

101'/21

10t1122

10t1/23

211t19

2nt20
2lU2t
211t22

21U23

211124

211t25

211t26

211t27

211128

2/1t29
2t1t30
2t1t3t
2t1t32

2t1t33

855,000

895,000

940,000

97s,000

970,000

960,000

945,000

930,000

15,000

10,000

2s.000

25,000

60,000

1 1s,000

910,000

l,01 5,000

r,120,000

I ,21 5,000

I,285,000

I,325,000

l,345,000
r,370,000

r,395,000

4.00%

4.00o/o

4.00o/o

4.00o/o

4.00%

3.00o/o

3.r2s%
3.25o/n

2.00v,
2.00%
2.00%
2.00%

3.00%
3.00%
s.00%
s.00%
4.25o/o

s.00%
4.50o/o

4.50o/o

4.7 5o/o

4.7 5o/o

4.75%
Þ

oqo
O
NJ

$ 2r,1 r5,000 $ 1,380,000 $ 19,73s,000
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KTNNELON BOROU SCHOOL DISTRICT

LONGITERM DEBT

SCHEDULE OF OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL IEASES
FOR THE FISCAL ENDED.TIINE 30.2016

Exhibit I-2

Balance

June 30,2016Item

Interest

Rate

Original
Issue Issued

2016 Bus Lease 1.98% $ 273,737 s 273,737 s 273,137

$ 273,737 s 273,737



KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDI]LE

DEBT SERVICE FUND
FÕR TIfF FTSÍ-AI YEAR ENDED JLINE 2?n ñ1 6,

Exhibir I-3

Variance
Final to Actual

REVENUES:
Local Sources:

Local Tax Levy
State Sources:

Debt Service Type II Aid

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES:
Regular Debt Service:

Interest
Redemption of Principal

Total Regular Debt Service

Total Expenditures

Fund Balance, July I

Fund Balance, June 30

Original
Budget

$ 2,123,789

69,550

2,193,339

813,339
1,380,000

2,193,339

2,193,339

Budget
Transfers

-0-

$ -0-

Final
Budget

813,339
1,380,000

Actual

813,339
1,380,000

$ 2,123,789 $ 2,123,799

69,550 69,550

2,193,339 2,193,339

-0- $

2,193,339 2,193,339

2,193,339 2,193,339

-0- -0-

$ -0-$ -0-$-0-$-0-

Þ
oa
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STATISTICAL SECTION
ruNAUDITED)

This part of the District's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures and required supplementary
information says about the District's overall financial health.

Contents
Exhibit

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how

the District's financial performance and well-being have changed over time. J-l thru J-5

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors

affecting the District's ability to generate its property taxes.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the District's current levels of outstanding debt and the District's ability
to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader

understand the environment within which the District's financial activities take

place and to help make comparisons over time and with other governments.

Operating Information
These schedules contain information about the District's operations and

resources to help the reader understand how the District's financial information
relates to the services the Dishict provides and the activities it performs.

J-6 thru J-9

J-10 thru J-13

J-14 thru J-15

J-16 thru J-20

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial report for the relevant year.



2007

$ 6,300,840

12,706,992

(58,683)

_q-Lqr12J32_

2008

$13,665,081 517,877,438

5"379,249 730,715
(508.473) (796,s30)

s 1 8.535.857 $17,811,623

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(accrual basis of accountins)

UNAUDITED

2009 2010

Exhibit J-1

2015 2016

$21,15r,918 520,326,09t
6'77,206 1,119,s39

(7,832,922)

s 13,612,708

June 30-

2011 2012 2013

$18,157,140 S18,680,587 $19,148,508

94t,498 30.223 30.223

1,888,392 1,738,222

$19,098,638 520,599,202 520,916,9s3

2014

$19,254,575
86 r,139

(6.363.054)

Governmental activities
Net Investment in capital æsets

Restricted

Unrestri cted/(De{icit)
Total govcmmental activities net position

Business-type activities
Net Investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total business-rype activities net position

District-wide
Net Investment in capital assets

Restricted

Unrestricted/(Deficit)
Total district net position

Source: School District Financial Reports

$ I 8,555,6i3
s20,683

(846.449\

st8.229.847

$ tr9,332
104,987

s 224,319

(8.1 1 8.400)

$13.7s2.660 513.710.724

s 137,047

152.279

s 289"326

$ 129,984

r29,200
s 259,184

$ 135,895

r43,708

$ 279.603

$ 108,1 16

106,940

$ 215,056

s r07,32t
r 38.9s9

s 93,777

164.164

$ 257 
"941

$ 79,782
207,535

$ 287,317

s 70,392

274,84s

$ 34s,237

s19"313.694 $20.845.482

s 6s,787

244.914

$ 310.701

s19,334,357 $21,217,70s

861,139 677,206
(6,1 55,5 19)

sl4.039.977

(7,873,486)

s14.021,42s

s 246,280

$ 6,437,887

12,706,992

93.s96

s 1 3,79s,065

5,379,249
$ 1 8,013,333

730,'715

(6s2.822)

sl8,674,945
s20,683

(7 4t,462)
s 1 8,454,1 66

s 1 8,26s,256

470,825

577.613

$ 1 8,787,908

30,223

2.027.3s1

sr9,242,285
30,223

1.902.38679

st9.238.475 $18,795,041 $18,091,226 szt,r74,894

s20"396,483

1,1 19,539

(7.ss8.077)

$ i3.957,945

0a
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Exhibit J-2

I of2
KìNNELON BOROUGI] SCHOOL DISTRICT

CI{¡\NGES IN NET PO_SlTlON. LAST TEN FISCAL- YEr\RS
/, tc< r¡,a I l a:t.¡, ¡i.t:¡ nt ¡t t t nx)

UNr\liDljLED

240'7

4.t 69.442

2.059.884

529,4i0
207.84E

2. I 96.E06

949._i86

l. I 40.6i4
4-69',7,'7'72

856.882

2,045.940

569.97i
2ì 8.278

j.63 0.5 73

2. l 7i.475
r.455,369

I,r 20.1 89

4,88,i.48 ì

83 ì .006
2.086,520

2 I 6.563
j,6 I 7.395

2. I 93.84E

t.i65.24 I

1.0 I 6,753

5.119.338

9'7.644

2_t34.3 77

565.1 li
219.36r

_r.i 1 9.895

l,7 l t .2i7
|,z',l8.26'.7

I .i ì 6.906

4.496.13',7

6't6.984
2. I 26.7t i

566.r r0

r 22.05 ì

3,356.498

2.03 r .790
971.545

20t 3

58.081

39.544.506

5,67:.053 S

736 839

r,608.863

5,5r r,2r 8

2.263.21)
5 50.83 3

I 07,629

3,766,131

t.954.847
9'/9,029

1,607.ji9
7,058.ì06

676.806

2.743,629

571.l]6
134.45 7

3,744,103

2.002.699

769.935

Fi<c¡l Ye¡r Fndinr' lune i0
2008 2009 2010 201 I 2012

s

2014 201 5 20r 6

Expcnscs

Covern¡rental activitìcs
lnstruclion

Rcgular

Speciaì ccìucatron

Othcr special cducatron

Other insrructron

SuppoÍ Sc^,rccsl

Turtrou

Strdent & inslrilclion rcìated se^,ìces

Ccnçr¿l ¡nd t'r'rnc'¡.rdrrrnrstr¡trr e qen rces

Sch¡"1 .\dnrinrstr¡t.' c Scn ices
(-cntral Scrviccs

\Jrrrnrstratrr c'l cclrrolôj\ lnfofiùalron
Plant opera!rons and nrainlcnance

Pupil transportation

Infercsl on long-tcnr dcbt

Unallocarcd dcprccration

CÂprtal Outlav

Total govcrnnrenlal actrvities cxpcnses

Busincsslypc actrvr tres

Irood scrvicc

Llníchnìenl l)rogr¡¡i
_lbral 

bLLsrnoss-tvpeaclrvitics expcnse
'foteL drstrct cxpcnscs

Itrogranr Rcvcnucs

Golcnrnlcntal ¡ctivrtrcs
('harqcs lor scn,rccs'

lnrrruclìor (liliilof)
Ofcr¡nng grrfls and cortribulrons

'l ohl gÕ\'cilìûìcnl¡l aclr\.rtics l)rogrlnì revcnrcs

llusrncss-rvÞc ¡crir.rties

Ch¡rgcs lbr sc^'ìccs

Iioo(l scr!roc
Enrichnicnr Progr¡fl

Ol)crì(rf S Srrnls ¡nd conlriburions
_l 

olal busrncss Lvpc rctrlrlcs DrcSranì rcvcnucs
'ì_otâl drslricl pÍosrrnl rc!cf ucs

r 5.007.235

2.'704.) 46

l5 r,709

I,045.5 I 5

15.912.755

2.973,9 t4
j'7'7,798

t.lt0,lt

I 5.i15,444
1.245.14 ì

468,724

t,270.013

I 6.655.387

:t.276.930

i6r.522
r.3 i5, I 96

r 5.120.077
j.520. I 9 I

286.979

I 5.7 I i.492
1.720. I 9l

2E3.9E2

r.l70.r 37

t6.931,63 7

3,9t r.881

395,358

I ,246,967

I 6.435.098

3.852.677

488. I t?
1.096.94?

I 8.590.309

4.863.506

712.248

r,461,012

I 9.763.406

5.4 t 5.1 4?

659.95E

1.672,943

1.355.16t

4,888,666

t02,026

58r,074
2. l 24.580

:i.198.665

t.9 r 8.266

t,t2ì,860

1.395.t 01

603.063

2.295. I 6l
i'7 |,202
r 09,973

t.055,85i

t.623,2E7

6.644,'710

6 I 0.548

2.41 8.49i
569.t 05

t 62_512

3,997,481

2. I I 3,6i6
864,449

t.0{i.604 510.627 2i7,411
35,¡55.E04 37.676.211 i7,401.807

634.9ri 64'7.94i 6r7.i56 592.',740

142.260 t46.620 145.49',7 127.288
'777.)'75 794,56:i 763.053 720.02E

-!--i!lqj!3- -!--i!.21!J]4 -!---l$i2Lr-r --Þ---rlfl-iJ?4

578,'.149

t46.572
528,90'l

234.67'7

549.6E6

2.2',7.538

576.i02
?6s 5 Sl

95.r99
t 1 .336.746

5R OR? 527 il8
44.689.383 41 40',7 )42

9 539 898

9 539 898 I 1.43 t.945

800 245 880.1 52

s r0340.143 $ 12.312_097

l5r
37.476.1 5 r 35,796.418

s 1.745.7.i4

1.74 i.7i,1

¿7 171

36,rr ú%

s 4.804.944

{.304.944

60.419

39.234.57',7

i 208 200

i ?08 200

191'711

17i

612.t t4 660.107

r 0i.425 ì 5i. I 50

715.539 8 I i.457
s l6.2sl.i4i s 38.489.678

725.32t 76t.584 R¿6 055

S 40.:6c).81- S lo.9o8,lol S ¿5,460.607 S 48.:s3.:57

S

s 5.E22.548

5.3 tt.5 4E

s 6.r96.217
(¡. I 9(r.2i?

S ¡.104.168 S 5.7:9.iE.l
I 04.266 7:9.184

s

(,18.671 i9l.lls 575.501 5i8.484 517.9117

lì8.710 l:16.1(19 167.388 ll8.5l4 l:t.806
14.678 411.786 54.261 62.010 58.i99

71?..A10 7Et.l70 79'7.ti2 739.00E 756. r 52

S 6.¡94.6ì8 $ 6.97E.607 S 5.901.420 S 6.46E.:192 S 4.501.886

iì I \o,

l -r6.i62

15t.tn
_!____jil!_!t_L

45E, I 63

\94.639

446.5'7 6

1t 1i1

4i9,5 I 2

288,389
'72 344

502.430

300,105
'77.61'/

$ 6.000.9 ì 2

oa
(D

\ì



Exhibit J-2

ì of2
KINNELON BOROTJGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

CHANGES IN NET POSITION. LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(accrilaI ha.tis a/ accortnIrn!)

UNAUDITEq

Jilne i0.
2007 200E 2009

$ 27,iE9.220 S 28.468.788

2.',728.262 7_762,724

20t0 201 I

68.862

(1i,E72.45r)
It.5t8

(34.026.377)

19. r 28

(i5. r 49.485)

23 021

20tz 201 3 201 4 201 5 20t6

s (3s,975,2j7)
i4 091

s 1ji.E60.935) s li3-997.249) S 135 t26464) S r3594r ì601

s

68,656

34,3 r 0,032 3¿6î6 |8 î5 I 07 549 3i.877.24 I

2'7'7

Ncl (0xpcilsc)/Rcvciluc

Covernnlcntâl actr!,itics

Busrness-ryÞc ñclrvitics
-l 

oral drst¡ìct-wide nct cxl)cnsc

Gcncral Rcvcnucs ¡nd Othcr Changcs in Nct Posilioil
Govenrnrent¡l activilies

Propen.v taxcs lclicd lor general prrposes. net

T¡xes Ievicd lor debr servrce

SDÀ Cr¡n1

Fedcr¡l and Stare ¡\rd Not ResLrictcd

In!estnlcft eârnings

ìUiscellaneous rnconrc

Trans lers

Totrl governnrcntal rcrrvitics

Business{ypc acti!ilics
!lrscellnncous inconìc

l-r¡fs1ìrs
Spcciâl llcrì - Drsposal olCrpitâl Asscts

TotÂl busrDcss-lvpc activitics
-foLal district-*rdc

7-6jj
(6.:ì 88 ) (4.1 3 s)

1.703

(r.16ì )

ì.24S 945 442

s 29..ì08.604 S 1r,067.617 S 3t.573.74?

s (29.7i:r.156) S (ir.479.e34) S (32,297.5t9) S (3t.746.767) S (i2.0i0.744) S (32.t06.?s2)
46.5:i I (3 r .0s7) )9,9'77 (55.555) (6.90 I ) :ì I .099

_!__l:2i!!.!) _t_(r_ti_t_!.0tu _!__aæui!?I _!__(3_1_!91:?]. _!__U!gté1ì _!___G?.qz$ji)

209.555

282.023 E59.029 259.276

6.388 4.i15 ì.26t
29.107.359 it.066.692 3t.573.305

16.0i 1.655

l.2t t.617
566.r2r

29.599.602

8 1. t35

t5t.r74
748

s 30,099.983

28t.3t2
r06

s 30.70 1,983

2.434,758

40 I .588
124

3t.3r6.02i
2,662,364

262.855

ll4

32. I 02.343

2,) 62,443

68.55i

302.636
tßì

i2.480.021

2,ì 9l.t 50

193.264

240,95 I
l6l

l3_389,62 I

2.t23,789

69.5i0

294,281

85.846 81.156 68.759

32.564.99t 32.919.5tS i3.607.3t6

t.0t9 144

(748) ( I 06)
(2.400)

l5l
(2?8)

21 I (2.362) r:5
s 12.565.262 S i2.917,t7i S 33.607.44r

4l I

(r8i)
526

(r6l)
439

t4l 244 ¿ì9
s 14.:iì0.t75 s 34.636,366 S 15.107.912 S t5.877.680

(134)

449.240 S 619 il7 S ll8 i52ì

(lhâilge ;il Nct I'osilion
(jo\ crnnìcft¡l ¡clr\ rLrcs

[ìusrncss-r!pc actrvrt cs
'lì)râl drstri0t

s (41-i.897) S (4ìl.l9l) S (714.214) S tìt3.224 S 868.791 S r.500.564
41.'776 (l0.t1l) 10.4ì9 (55.284) (9.26j) 31.?24

s (i7s.ì3r) s (r4i.4t4) s (70r.8r5) s 761.940 s 859.528 $ ì.5lt.7EE

437.5'79

| 661

649.',7 41

29 i'7 6

(4ì.936)

23.384

(98.0r 6)

t6t 480)

Sourcc: Schoo Drstricl l:rn¡ncrrl Iìcpots

0a
cù

oê



Exhibit J-3

KI\NELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
FUND BALANCES. GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS.

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(modified accrual bas is of accounling)

UNAUDITED

June 30.

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

s 314,39't S 145"754 S 137,882 S 165,652

793,819 796,235 193,947 222,562

$ 100 s 100 $ 699,574 $ 861,139 $ 838,771 $r,119,539
187,417 1,195,155 559,278 1,01s,9ss 381,921 34s,991

_ 684,073 818,010 787,974 729,668 874,892 1,063,156

$ 1,108,216 _q__2ä¿q2_ _q!]1j22_ _Ëgg2_13_ _q_4J29_ _!2p13¿6s_ _J2!19,826_ _!2þ9þ162_ _q42Ð!4_ _J2é28.68!_

s 534,741

General Fund

Reserved

Unreserved

Restricted

Assigned

Unassigned

Total general fund

A1l Other Governmental Funds

Reserved

Unreserved, reported in:

Capital projects fund

Debt service fund

Restricted:

Capital projects fund

Debt service fund

Assigned

Total all other govemmental funds

Source: School District Financial Reports

s3,143,487

2,090,008

1

$ 47,153

545,680

s 47,153

307,878t1,857,954
2

$12.392.697 _$:,23],4eþ_ _$!22jjj_ _qÞ!91_

s 30,220

248,513
4,575

$ 283,308

$ 30,220

3 $ 30,223

S3o,rn S:(.,rn $ 4- $ 4. $ +

0qo



Exhìbìt J-4

KINNELON BOROUGI.I SCI.IOOI- DIS-f]ìICT
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES. GOVERNI\,IENT¡\I- FUNDS.

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(ttIt)¿¡lieLl accntaI hû.t¡.\ oI ¿rccottûIi n{)

UNAUDITED

2007 2008 2009

Fisc¿l Year Endint June ì0.
lotI 20 ì2 20ìl 20 t4 20t5 20 t6

Rc\ enucs
'l_ar lev\
'lurtion charges

lrteresl eanrings

ñl rsccllancous

State sources

[-'edcral sourccs

Total re!enue

23.2.43.L12

ì 00.68 r

2 I 0.600

I 33.4ó4
j,923.5 l 2

.156.990

30. I I 7.:13?

64.100

67i. li7
12t.592

5.800.572

48t.4tI

s lì.23t.512
I 30.092

52.235

78-7'75

4.63 r.971

551.124

i2..li l.9l.l

I r,546
'7 4,876

4.822. I 98

938.31 I

s it.569.2jj
11.923

1.635

2i | .699

l.it5.ì 57

419.439

36.665. ì 6l

s -r3.978,187

34.297

5.406

I 73.786
\ t¿i i))

4q4 5it
3qrs r .r5 r

$ i1.673.r7ì
I r t.991

6.236

241,760
j.507.282

454,861

40.96 I .303

l].327.ì ti
2.476,642

157.176

878,661

Ì.385.304

r.587.665

512-3't1

r.506,464

1 | .526

I 64.893
j,040.542

2.t72.101

4r,928,i95

(5.252.0s4)

20ì0

'ìß 29',1 62?

r,016.753

4.0t I.472

487, r 60

r,525.664

4i6.i37
71.340

2-92.7,813

t.869.729

.ì8 4?5 ?92

(rst.r6i)

1t8t4t7ì

r.3 I 0.000

951.r79

I r .754,488

t. I 90,740

459.361

96 t.88 I

| .62i,288
4,428.5'72

448,98i

r.i l 7,683

4 I 0.985

I I 8.3i9
3.003.338

t.8'74.297

( r 2,454.000)

I I,2i0.000
( l 29.81i)
(503.256)

1.357.089

i00.263
(300, r o0)

ló3

1.355,000

907,853

41,472.644

42.513.216

I t ,78 r,223

3,251.194

389.775

952.3'7 |

r.607.359

4.510.091

497.199

1,645_24'l

190,2t3

8 r ,520

I,988,640

r,180,000

I I 3.339

42,358,85 l

213.131

s s i3. I 16.74 r

r 56.675

4.653

240.264
J ìri i)q

548. I 74

33.4r 2.032

r.355.161

3.687.609

565.516

I .543.675

443.326
'11,440

2-114.340

t.8i8,i48

333,362

s 31_264_'t46

r 55.734

6.464

I 52.904

4,820,i83
443.904

39.844. I 35

I.608.863

4,012.920

433.501

I.569.588

430.630
'77.'780

3.140-9'76

ì,870,391

35.5t3.410

95, r 99

6.0t8
283.26i

6. I 40.022

475.304

l5.t2l,il9 37.258,594 36.676.3t I

Expcnd iLurcs

Instruction

Rcgular lnstructron

Specral eclrrcation instruction

OLhcr specral instruction

Othcr r¡stnrcfiôn

Support Services

Tuìtion

Studenl & inslruclrorr related services

General adrlinislratire servrces

School ;\clrnrnrstralive scrvices

Ccntral Scr r ices

;\dnrinistratrvc Inf'omation Technologv

Plant opcratrons and r¡ainlenance

Puprl transportation

¡\llocatcd Benelits

Unallocatccl Bcncfits

Capital oullav

DcbL ser vicc

Prrncipal

I¡tercst ând otlìcr charscs
'l_otal cxpcncirturcs

l:\cess ( Dcllcrcncv) ol- rc\cnucs

o\cr (under) c\Þen(liLurcs

Othcr Frnancrng sourccs (uscs)

Bond Pn¡cccds

Capilal l-cascs (Nof -bucì-scled)

Serial Iloncls Dcliasec{

Scnâl Iloilds Issucd

Ilond lssuâncc ('osls

Dclcrrcd Intcrcst

llond l)rcrnnrnr

Tr¡nsl-crs in
'l-r anslìr s oul

'l_otal olhcr lìnancrng soLrrccs (uses)

NcL changc rn lìrncl l¡âlanccs

DcbL scrricc as a pcrccnla{c ol'

noncâpi1ai e\pcndilurcs

Source: School Drstflct Finarciâl Reports

I 0,680.5jj
r ,s55.7 r i

i5r.709
i90,192

ì6.1o:.?:7 .ll.5RS ìj?

( l. l -:.:0s) (^..ì:q.76ì)

I I .3 ì4.01 6

1.032.514

3't1.198

871.448

12.232.020

2-414.204
1f1 \41

93'1 -129

I 0.869.312

15t -4 t'7

I I ,041,708

2.733-4 t 4
)ã1 i1)

782,038

I l.'720.334

2.3 r 9.1 84

282.9J1

826,62.5

I I ,497.005
2.809,534

153.665
't34-929

1.243.191

3.i04.6 I 9

522.9i9

I,4 I 4.?9:l

334,432

I 50.963

2..473.372

2. r 22.0i3
t.652.i70
3.329.i00

t.761.6ì I

l. I 40.654

3.773. r r 5

65 r .326

| .4 I 2.-47 6

4t5.73r
I 57.79 I

1.753.i I 7

2. r r 6.68i

I .3 I 6.906

t.425.48i
535.273

r .501,6 r 8

43 I .026

95.98 ì

?.783,021

t.870.80 I

1.395. r 0l
4,014.250

461.569

1,578,197

434,140
'78,594

3,t 61 -671

r ,83 1.095

7 -421.312
7 -269_477

6.5 r 7.573

4.635.670
7. I 0r1.60:l

271.819

7. I 43.64i
r.4i.0 t I

7.68 t.270
'72.376

8.294,708

r 53.334

3.689,24,+
'732,566

9,6 I r.08 I

694.2A0

1.i30.000

923.i26
r..135.000

| .429. ì 09

..505.000

r .i38.93 1

r.515.000

1.2'73.261

t.570.000

97i.545

8,494, I 68

r07,351

t.670,000 1.7 I 5,000

r.082.027 t,0r 6,020

36.25i,616 31_52.3.610

4tì

39.948,524 39.3 I 4.605

33,42'7 529.530

ì 1.651.000

ri|.i4ì) t50.i65

213_13't

7.4i3 603.31i
( r .045) (599.i03)

t:.660.tsß .l.jjj 183

s i3,56r s 529,713

L261

1.26 ì

743 I 06 ?.28

.*.
t34 t8l

-!___t!1!!$9_ _!__lzi!:.42!r _L_aëgi?¿ _!_____1_L_tfli _q______qggi:0 _9____l:_[JZÐ_ _!__133J_qr

6.6?.0% 7 578% Þ
teo

O

3 156% 8.268% '7 95 to/. '7 93 tó/. 1 3590/. 6 t290/r 5.88 1 % 5 557%



Page 111

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

GENERAL FLIND - OTHER AL REVENUES BY SOURCE

LAST TEN I, YEARS
(modirted accrual basis o-f accounting)

UNAUDITED

Tuition
Prior Year
Refunds Other

Exhibit J-5

Total
FiscalYear

Ending June 30,

Interest on

Investments

2007

2008

2009

2010
2011

2012

2013

2014

2015
2016

$ 209,555

13,629

52,325

11,546

1,685

4,653

5,406

6,464

6,236

6,018

$ 100,681

64,400

130,092

64,752

41,928
156,675

84,297

155,734

111,993

95,199

$ 60,5 81

41,562

39,151

17,23'7

34,918

190,297

60,911

31,123

35,719

210,538

205,342

173,152

140,438

122,722

202,829

$ 490,533

259,521

261,102

151,17 4

277,388

401,588

262,855

302,636

240,951

304,046

$

Source: Borough of Kinnelon School District records



Farm Regular

Total Assessed

Value
Net Valuation

Taxable

Exhibit J-6

Estimated Actual
(County Equalized

Value)
Farm

Qualified

$ r94,900

65,700

21,400

22,800
l 8,900

26,700
26,700

28,000

38,s00

39,900

Public

Utilities â

g 1,766,281

1,662,978

1,67'7,327

1,793,16s

1,806,607

Total Direct
School Tax

Rate 
b

1.703

1.178

L846
1.907

1.967

2 013

2.082

2.128

2.155
2.200

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN YEARS

tr'l.lAUDlTED

Year Ended

December 31 Vacant Land

$ 54,674,400

44,023,500

41,568,100

37,640,800

32,126,300

31,191,300

28,269,200

27,013,400

24,433,'700

22,193,300

Residential

$ 1,454,945,000

1,5 12,760,000

1,535,171,700

1,s45,303,s00

1,533,542,400

I,s 1 9,062,800

1,503,4r 6,800

1,496,8s8,300

1,498,703,100

I,496,614,600

Commercial Apartment

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010*

201 1

2012
2013

2014

2015

$ 3,156,600

3, I 56,600

3,1 s6,600

4,0 1 8,300

4,0 r 8,300

5,575,400

5,575,400

5,575,400

3,907,700

3,025,300

$ 54,332,000

62,329,400

6 1,800,1 00

s9,s97,300

59,597,300

56,828,300

s5,922,200

ss,3s2,400

s4,096,400

54,096,400

$ r8,360,100
r 8,360,100

1 8,360,100

1 8,360,1 00

I 8,360,1 00

1 8,360,1 00

1 8,360,100

r 8,360,100

I 8,s00,700

l 8,500,700

$ 1,s8s,663,000

1,640,695,300

1,660,078,000

1,664,942,800

1,648,263,300

1,631,644,600

l,6l I ,570,400
1,603,1 87,600

1,s99,680,1 00

1,595,070,200

s 1,s87,429,281 S

|,616,634,s78
1"661,755,321

1.666.735.965

1,6s0,069,907

1,631,644,600

1,61 1,570,400

1,603,1 87,600

I,s99.680.1 00

1,595,070,200

$ 1,958,594,455

2,171,671,798
2,411,517,948

2,464,348,279

2,385,45'7,9'70

2,291,060,886
2,1 87"065,383

2.039.419.412

2,036,364,102
2,112,068,23'7

*-Revaluation Year

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor

Note: Real property is required to be assessed at some percentage oftrue value (fair or market value) established by each county board oftaxation.

Reassessment occurs when ordered by the County Board ofTaxation

a Taxable Value of Machinery, Implements and Equipment of Telephone, Telegraph and Messenger System Companies

b Tax rates are per $100

Þ
oao

N)



Year Ended

December 3 l, Basic Rate "

General

Obligation Debt

Service b Total Direct
Borough of
Kinnelon

Page 1 13

Exhibit J-7

Total Direct
and

Overlapping
Tax Rate

KINNELON SCHOOL DISTRICT

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

LAST TEN YEARS

(rate per 8100 ofassessedvalue)

LINAUDITED

Kinnelon School District Direct Rate Rates

Morris
County

2006

2007

2008

2009
2010*

20lt
2012

2013

2014
2015

$ $1.557

1.628
1.681

1.746

1.810

1.865

1.919

2.000

2.019
2.068

0.146

0.1 50

0.1 65

0.161

0.1 57

0.148

0.1 63

0.128

0.1 36

0.132

1.703

1.718

1.846

1.907

1.967

2.013

2.082
2.128

2.155
2.200

0.451
0.466

0.473

0.485

0.51 1

0.531

0.555

0.582

0.589

0.590

0.336

0.356

0.345

0.336

0.329

0.330

0.330

0.330

0.32s

0.332

2.490
2.600

2.664

2.728

2.807

2.874

2.967

3.040

3.069
3.122

$$$ $

* - Revaluation year

Source: Municipal Tax Collector and School Business Administrator

Note:
NJSA 184:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy . The levy when

added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by more

than the spending growth limitation calculation.

a The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the

Net Valuation Taxable.

b Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements



Taxable

Assessed

Value

s s7,451,900

% ofTotal
Dishict Net

Assessed Value

Taxable

Assessed

Value

s 70,614,300

Exhibit J-8

o/o of Total
District Net

Assessed Value

t.t1%
1.02Yo

0.80%
0.61%
0.31%

0.260/o

0.26%

0.21%
0.20o/o

0.tgyo

Taxpayer

Multi-Family Housing
Commercial Property

Commercial Property

Commercial Property

Vaca¡t Land
Vacant Land
Vaca¡t Land
Vacant Land
Vacant Land
Commercial Property

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTzuCT
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

CURRENT YEARAND NINE YEARS AGO
UNAUDITED

2015

Rank

2006

RankTaxpayer

Multi-Family Housing
Commercial Properly

Commercial Properly

Comme¡cial Property

Vacant Land
Commercial Properly

Residential Property

Commercial Property

Residential Property

Commercial Property

Total

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor

$ r7,609,600
10,000,000

9,750,000

4,000,800

3,365,1 00

2,777,700

2,604,800
2,538.200

2,493,000
2,312,700

$ 17,609,600

12,644,800

9,750,000

5,875,000

5,1 46,1 00

5,023, I 00

4,206,600
4,071,r00
3,319,700
2,968,300

I
2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

I
2

3

4

5

6

7

I
9

t0

l.l0o/o
0.630/o

0.610/o

0.2s%
0.21o/o

0.17%

0.t6%
0.16Yo

0.16%
0.l4%o

3.58Yo 4.97yo

Þ
oao

è
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Fiscal Year Ended

June 30,

Taxes Levied for
the Fiscal Year

Percentage of
Levy

Exhibir J-9

Collections in

Subsequent

Years

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

LINAUDITED

Collected within the Fiscal Year of the

Levy "

Amount

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012
2013

2014

2015

2016

28,243,272

30,117,482

31,231,512

32,331,934

32,569,255

33,136,741

33,918,387

34,264,746

34,673,171

35,513,410

28,243,212

30,117,482

31,231,512

32,331,934

32,569,255

33,136,741

33,978,387

34,264,746

34,673,171

35,513,410

$ r00.00%
100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

$

a. School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New

Jersey State Statute, a municipality is required to remit to the school

distirct the entire property faxbalance, in the amount voted upon or certified
prior to the end ofthe school year.

$ -0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

Source: Borough of Kinnelon District records including the Cerlificate and Report of
School Taxes (A4F form)



Govemmental Activities

Certificates

General of
ObligationBonds Par.ticipation

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED

Business-Type
Activities

Bond
Anticipation

Notes
(BANs) Capital Leases Total District

Percentage of
Personal Income "

Exhibit J-10

Per Capita'

3,629

3,462

3,264

3,108

2,784

2,598

2,416
"> 1-7-7

2,034

1,925

Fiscal
Year

Ended

June 30,

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

33,906,000

32,s21,000

31,016,000

29,481,000

28,389,000

26,719,000

25,004,000

23,694,000

21,115,000

19,735,000

Capital
Leases

s 476,841

361,132

110,617

267,600

162,229

I 1 0,866

s6,832
-0-

-0-

$ $ $ $-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-
-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

$ 34,382,841

32,882,132

31,126,617

29,748,600

28,551,229

26,829,866

25,060,832

23,694,000

21,1 15,000

20,008,737

5.44%

4.960/o

4.54o/o

4.57o/o

4.05%
3.610/o

3.23%

3.03%
2.46%
2.33%

$

273,737

Source: School District Financial Reports

Note: Details regarding the dìstrict's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

See Exhibit J-14 for personal income and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal income and

population for the prior calendar year.

a

Þ
oe
(D

o\



General

Obligation
Bonds Deductions

Net General

Bonded Debt
Outstanding

Percentage of
Actual Taxable

Value u of
Propefty

Page 1 17

Exhibit J-11

Per Capita 
b

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF NET GENERAL ED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Fiscal

Year
Ended

June 30,

2007

2008

2009

2010
2011

2012
2013

2014
2015

2016

$ 33,906,000

32,521,000
31,016,000

29,481,000
28,389,000

26,719,000
25,004,000

23,694,000

21,115,000

19,735,000

$ 33,906,000

32,521,000
31,016,000

29,481,000

28,3 89,000

26,719,000
25,004,000

23,694,000
2l,l15,000
19,735,000

3,578
3,424

3,253

3,080

2,768
2,587

2,410
) )'71

2,034
1,899

2.136%
2.012%
1.866%

1.769%

1.720%

1.638%

1.552%

1.478%

1.320%

1.231%

$

Source: School District Financial Reports

Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements

These ratios are calculated using information from the prior calendar year.

a See Exhibit J-6 for property tax data.

b Population data can be found in Exhibit J-14.

Note
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Exhibit J-12

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTR]CT
RATIOS OF OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF DECEMBER 31.2015
UNAUDITED

Debt
Outstanding

Estimated

Percentage

Applicable'

Estimated

Share of
Overlapping

DebtGovernmental Unit

Debt repaid with property taxes

Borough of Kinnelon
Morris County General Obligation Debt

Subtotal, overlapping debt

Kinnelon School District Direct Debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

Sources

Note:

s 17,3s2,304

226,745,317

r00.000%

2.279Vo

$ 17,352,304

5,166,629

22,518,933

19,735,000

s 42,253,933

Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Morris County Board of
Taxation; debt outstanding data provided by each governmental unit.

Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.
This schedule estimates the portion ofthe outstanding debt ofthose overlapping governments that is borne by the

residents and businesses of Kinnelon. This process recognizes that, when considering the District's ability to issue

and repay long-term, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account.

However this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each

overlapping unit.

a For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable equalized

property values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's
equalized propefty value that is within the district's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total equalized property

value.
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNÂUDITED

Average equalized valuation of taxable property

Debt limit (4o/o of averuge equalization value)

Net bonded school debt
Legal debt margin

Fiscal Years

Exhibit J-13

Equalized valuation basis

2015 $2,109,323,19s
2014 2,116,818,976

2013 2,039,419,412

$ 6,265,561,583

$ 2,088,520,528

83,540,821 a

19,735,000

$ 63,805,821

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Debt limit

Total net debt applicable to limit

Legal debt margin

Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit

Debt limit

Total net debt applicable to limit

Legal debt margin

Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit

s 85,751,s77

33,906,000

s92,420,076

32,521,000

s 96,82s,364

3 1,016,000

$ 97,299,500 $

29,481 ,000

95,707,525

28,389,000

$51,845,s77 $59,899,076 $ 65,809,364 $ 67,818,500 $ 67,318,s2s

39.s4% 35.19Yo 32.03% 3030% 29.66%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

992,418,s20

26,719,000

$ 88,57r,000

25,004,000

84,927,221 $

23,714,000

83,648,814

2l,1 15,000

83,540,82 1

19,735,000

$

$6s,699,s20 $63,567,000 g 61,213,221 $ 62,s33,8r4 $ 63,80s,821

28.91o/o 28.23Yr 27.92% 25.24Vr

Source: Equalized valuation bases were obtained from the Annual Report ofthe State ofNew Jersey,

Department of Treasury, Division of Taxation

23.62%

a Limit set by NJSA l8A:24-19 for a K through I 2 district; other o/o limits would be applicable for other districts
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Exhibit J-14

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN YEARS
UNAUDITED

Population

Personal Income
(thousands of

dollars) b

Morris County Per

Capita Personal

Income "

Unemployrnent

Rate 
da

Year

2006
2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012
2013

2014
2015

9,475

9,497

9,535
g \'7)

10,256

10,327

10,375

10,405

10,3 81

10,392

$ 632,579,425

663,298,971

685,919,295

650,589,696

704,735,936

742,655,818
716,319,750

780,936,870
859,650,610

860,561,520

$ 66,763

69,843

11,937

67,968
68,656

71,914

74,826

75,054
82,810
82,810 **

2.20%

2.00%

2.10%

4.',|0%

4.70%

4.60%

4.80%

4.80%
4.20%
4.20%

+* - Latest Morris County per capita personal income available (2014) was used

for calculation purposes.

Source:
u Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development

b Per capita personal income by municipality estimated based upon the 2000 Census published

by the US Bureau of Economic Analysis.

'Personal inome has been estimated based upon the municipal population and per capita

personal income presented.
d Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development
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Exhibir J-15

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

UNAUDITED

2015 2006

PercenTage of
Total

Employment

Percentage of
Total

Employer Employees Employer Employees

Kinnelon Board of Education

Stop & Shop

Borough ofKinnelon
Smokerise Club
Weichert Realtors

J.C. Christopher's

Route 23 Car & Van Wash

Rite Aid
Apple Montessouri

Wayne Johnson & Sons

Source: Borough of Kinnelon

335

150

100

50

35

25

20

17

15

14

375

175

r00

100

50

45

35

32

22

20

6.71%
3.00%
2.00%
1.00%

0.70%

0.s0%

0.40%
0.34%

030%
0.28%

Kinnelon Board of Education

Pathmark

Borough ofKinnelon
Sleeptech

Smokerise Club
Weichert Realtors

Kosco Harley-Davidson

Our Lady-Magnificant RC Church

Butler Bowl
Apple Montessori School

18.97%

8.8s%

5.06%
5.06%
2.53%
2.28%

1.620/o

1.11o/o

1.01o/o

761 15.24V, 9s4 48.26%



KT.NNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
FULL-TIME EOUIVALENT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES BY FTINCTION,?ROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
I.INAUDITED

2007 2008 2009 2010 20tt 2012

Exhibit J- 1 6

2013 2014 2015 2016
FunctionÆrogram

Instruction

Regular

Special education

Support Services:

Student & instruction related services

School adm inistrative services

General and business administrative services

Plant operations and maintenance

Business and other support services

Pupil transportation

Total

Source: District Personnel Records

146.80

52.54

138.00

50.10

141.80

50.90

138.30

5 1.40

137.30

51.40

134.00

55.50

126.00

75.00

t47.90
37.00

t46.84
53.80

153.3 l
59.29

37.80

16.50

3.00

30.50

7.80

39.83

16.50

2.80

32.00

10.80

40.83

16.50

3.80

28.50

14.85

43.80

16.00

3.80

30.90

5. 10

10.00

41.90

12.50

3.90

30.40

4.60

8.00

43.40

t2.s0
3.90

30.40

4.60

8.00

43.40

12.50

3.90

30.40

4.60

8.00

43.90

12.50

3.90

30.40

4.60

8.00

46.00

14.50

4.00

24.00

2.00

I 1.50

42.70

15.50

6.00

25.00

2.00

10.00

280.50 302.5'7 317.08 308.94 289.40 295.50 292.50 292.00 29r.s0 302.20

Þ
0a
(D

N)
NJ



KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
OPERATING STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAI, YEARS

UNAUDITED

Average Daily
Aftendance

Exhibit J- I 7

Student

Attendance

Percentage

7o Change in Average

Daily Errrolhnent

Puprl/-leacher Ratio

lìiscai

Ycar

Operating

Expcnclilurcs "

Cost Per Kiel Stony Brook
Elerncnlary

Pear I R. l\,lille r

M iddle School

I l0 9
l:12

L t2.54
l:l 1.9

l:11.3

l:ll
tlt
l:ll
l:ll
l:ll

Average Daily

Kinnelon E¡trollrnc¡lt

High School (ADE) "Ilnrol Inìcnl l,upil 'i 'fcaching Staff Elornenta¡) (ADA) "

2001

2003

2009

20 r0

201 I

20r2

20ll
20 l4

201 5

201(¡

1.205

2.241

1.230

).2t4
2.2t5

).222
2.143

2.t0i
2.0r9
t.992

3 1.828.678

14.504.77 I

14.398.744

35.184.676

33.567.060

34.699.261

36.12t.0'70

36.394.542

38.477.22,5

39.471 .3 l2

s r4.166
I 5.637

I 5.4i9
I 6.03i
t5.2:14

I 6.094

I 7.:ì4ó

t1.129

r9.t52
20.211

t7 t .90

I 72.10

178.21

t79.10
188.10

r 94.20

l9L20
190 20

I 89.50

20 L00

2,t t9
2.t20
l. I.1-1

2,120
) l0)
2,069
) oì)
1,914

1.930

I,838

S l:13.2

I : li.3
L12.9

1:12.5

I .10.2

l:ll
1.t2
l.t2
l:12
I 12

I:13.1

I : 13.6

I : 13.3

I : 14.6

I 13 6

l:13

I:14

I:14

Ll4
I t4

l:11.1

l:IL5
l:lL(>5
I : 10.3

l:11.9

t.t2
l:12

l:12

l:12
l:12

2-2Oc)

2.202

2.228
2.20'1

2.204

2.¡56

2.117

2.08 I

2,009

I,953

| .9460/0

0.09)v.
I.I8I%

-0.943%
-0.136%

-2. t'7So/o

- L809%

-l.701o/o

-:i.460%

-2.'t81yo

96.30v.

96.280/0

95.'74%

96.06yo

9s.40%

9s.960/"

95.98%

94.360/0

96.07V.

96.610/.

Sources- Borough ofKinìrelen School Disttjct recotds

Notcr Erlrollìùcnt t)âscd on annual October distÌict count.

2l

t)

c

d

Opcrating ex¡tenditures cqual total cxpenditures less det¡t service and capttal outlay.
-l'eachiilg slaff irclucles only lulì-timc equivalents of certifi cated stafl
Àveragc daiìy cnrollrncnt ând average dailv attendance a¡e o[rtained fro:n the School Rggister Sumrnalv (SRS).

Cost per pupìl is thc su¡r oloperating expenciitures divided by erìrolhnent. This cost per pupil rnay be different lrorn

thc SIrlc s côsl pcr l)upil calcr¡lâtìorrs

Þ
oqo

l.J
UJ



District Buildine

Kiel Elementary School (1995)

Square Feet

Capacity (students)

Enrollment

Stony Brook Elementary (1957)

Square Feet

Capacity (students)

Enrollment

Pearl R. Miller Middle School (1968)

Square Feet

Capacity (students)

Enrollment

Kinnelon High School (1963)

Square Feet

Capacrty (students)

Enrollment

Glenn Sisco Elementary School (1923)

Square Feet

Capacity (students)

Enrollment

21,097

168

1r6

21,097

168

136

2\,097
168

136

21,097

168

119

2007

89,910

593

535

2008

70,137

557

5t9

89,910

s93

550

70,137

557

515

49,s63

333

354

70,137

557

535

00,01 7

646

653

,017
646

66s

00

43,563

333

366

43,s63

JJJ

331

49,563

333

333

49,s63

333

388

49,563

333

377

49,s63

JJJ

315

KIN}¡ELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

L]NAUDITED

2009 2010 2011

Exhibir J-l8

2012 2013 2014 z0r5 2016

49,563

333

310

70,137

557

s58

70,137

557

498

89,910

s93

522

49"563

333

308

,910
593

493

89,910
593

532

8989,910

s93

545

89,910

593

572

49,s63

333

340

70,137

557

504

70,137

557

619

70,137

s57

524

70,137

557

480

89,91 0

593

561

70,137

557

s78

21,097

168

-0-

89,91 0

593

514

89,910

s93

508

21,097

ló8
-0-

36,846

646

694

136"846

843

ô/b

136,846

646

697

136,846

646

704

136,846

646

693

1 36,846

646

699

t36,846
646

688

136,846

646

672

21,097

168

-0-

21,097

168

-0-

21,097

168

-u-

21,097

168

-0-

Number of Schools at June 30,2016
Elementary:2
Middle School: 1

High School: I

Source: Borough of Kinnelon School Dìstrict Facilities Office

Note: Year of original construction is shown in pæentheses.

Enrollment ìs based on the annual October district count.

Þ
oao

t)
.Þ.



Fiscal Year'

[-]nclccl .lune 30.

Kiel

Elementary School

Stony Brook

Eiementary School

Pearl R. Miller
Middle School

Kinnelon

High School Maintenance

Exhibit J- I 9

Total
Clen L. Sisco

Illementarv School

25.966

2t,526
20,3t4
17,445

I I,l l2
4.999

3,559

22.210

8.973

I 1.890

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED MAINTENANCE

I-AST TEN FISCAI, YEARS

UNAUDITED

LJN DI S1'r{r BUI'UD DXpENDIt-URES - REQU IREI)
MAINI-I]NANCI] FOR SCIIOOI- FACIi-I'f IES

I l-000-26I-xxx

200'7

2008

2009

2010

201 I

20t2
2013

2014

2015

20t6

52.882
'7 5,025

85,3 r8

33,699

27,227

37.6r8

21.942

54.03 5

58.953

51,865

43,400

62.426

70,856

50. r 96

40.641

41.510

62.387

87,810
4) 565

5l _730

r 9,386

t9,623

27,266

25,541

4-025

3.95 5

36,000
ì1 25q

112,282

39.7'70

3r7,86r
356,214

363,9s r

'ì I ? 'ì7ì

23 5,3 85

283.207

595,890

453,209

459,400

326,468

$$ss$ 7q )q0

5 t.678

67,s91
54.5 52

13,841

67.957

61.67 |

56.236

96.454

87.220

96,937

125.936

92,606

l 3 0,940

78,539

t27,168

4 10,33 I

t99,6s9
t40-173

83,993

S $

* School lacilities as defined under EFCFA.
(N.J.A.C. 6A:26-1.2 and N.J.A.C. 6A:264-1.3)

Soulce: lloror-rglr o1'Kinnelon School District records

oao

l-)
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
INSURANCE SCHEDULE

JLINE 30.2016
UNAUDITED

Coverage

Exhibit J-20

Deductible

School Package Policy - Zurich American Insurance Company

Ploperty - Blanket Building and Contents

Commercial General Liability
Comprehensive Automotive Liability
Comprehensive Crime Coverage, Employee Dishonesty

Comprehensive Crime Coverage, Forgery or Alteration

Environmental Impairment Liability
Each Occurance

Aggregate

Boiler and Machinery - Zurich American Insurance Company

Propefty Damage

Umbrella Liability - Zurich American Insurance Company

Umbrella Policy

School Board Legal Liability - Zurich American Insurance Company

Limit of Liability
Employment Practices Liability

Public Employees' Faithful Performance Blanket

Treasurer of School Monies
Board Secretary

Additional Excess Liability Policy
Each Occurance

Aggregate

Travel Accident Policy
Principal Sum

Aggregate Limit

Source: Kinnelon Borough School District records.

s 94,29Q,259

l,ooo,ooo
1,000,000

500,000

50,000

1,000

5,000

I,000

l,ooo,ooo
10,000,000

100,000,000

9,000,000

$ 5,ooo

15,000

1,000

10,000

10,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

250,000

250,000

50,000,000

50,000,000

1 00,000

500,000
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION
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Mount Arlington Corporate Center
200 Valley Road, Suite 300

Mt. Arlington, NJ 07856
973-328-1825 I 973-328-0507 Fax

Lawrence Business Park
1 1 Lawrence Road
Newton, NJ 078ô0

973-383-6699 I 973-383-6555 Fax

Certified Public Accounlonts & Advisors

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and

on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Perforned in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors' Repofi

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Kinnelon Borough School District
County of Morris, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governntent Auditing Standards issued by

the Comptroller General of the United States and the audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School

Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey (the "Department"), the financial statements of the

governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate rernaining fund

information of the Board of Education of the Kinnelon Borough School District, in the County of Morris (the

"District") as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements,

which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements, and have issued our repoft thereon

dated October 15,2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's internal control

over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not

express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management

or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,

misstatements on a tirnely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in

internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District's

financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant

deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a

material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the lirnited purpose described in the first paragraph of this

section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be tnaterial weaknesses

or significant def,iciencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any defìciencies in

internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, rnaterial weaknesses may exist tliat

have not been identified.

t noe peno effi #31],:åiiî*ii," rnationar
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The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education
Kinnelon Borough School District
Page2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's f,rnancial statements are free of
matèrial misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,

contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the

determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those

provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion' Tlie

iesults of our tests disclosed no instances of noncornpliance or other matters that are required to be reporled

under Gov ernment Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this repoft is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and

the rèsult of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control

or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government

Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this

communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 15,2016
Mount Arlington, New JerseY

,J,t,i,øc-.i* LuP
NISIVOCCIA LLP

John J
lic Schoo

Certifred Pub lic Accountant
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Report on Compliance For Each Major State Programl
Report on Intemal Control Over Compliance

Independent Auditors' Report

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Kinnelon Borough School District
County of Morris, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program

We have audited the Board of Education of the Borough of Kinnelon School District (the "District's")
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the New Jersey State Aid/ Grant
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the District's major state program for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. The District's major state program is identified in the summary of
auditors'results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

M anagement's Resp o ns ibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants

applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditors' Resp onsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the District's major state program based on our

audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards

applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
lJniþrm Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
("Uniform Guidance") and New Jersey's OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal
Grants, State Grants, and State Aid. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey's OMB
Circular 15-08 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and

material effect on a major federal or state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,

evidence about the District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as

we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major state

program. However, our audit does not provide alegal determination of the District's compliance.

www. nisivoccia.com
lndependent Member of BKR lnternational
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The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Kinnelon Borough School District
Page 2

Opinion on Eøclt Maior State Program

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance req,uiretnents

referred io above that could havé a direct and material effect on its major state program for the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2016,

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over

complìance with the types of compliance requiretnents refened to above. In planning and performing our

audit of compliance,-we consideied the District's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major state program to determine the

uuditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

compliãn^ce for each rnajor state program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in

acco.dance with the Uniform Guidàncè and NJOMB 15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the

effectiveness of the District's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internøl control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over

"o*pliun".'does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of perforrning their assign-ed

functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a

federal or statè program on a timely basis. A ntaterial wealcness in internal control over compliance .is a

def,rciency, or ôombination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a

reasonabie possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or

state progra-m will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in

internal'control over compliønce is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over

compliance with a type oi compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a

matérial weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those

charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over

ðo1¡[tián". that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any

defióiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,

material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this repoft on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing

of inierÁal control ovei compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniforrn

Guidance or NJOMB 15-08. Accordingly, this repoft is not suitable for any other purpose.

n)u)roc,<ln LLF
NISIVOCCIA LLPOctober 15,2016

Mount Arlington, New Jersey

John J
lic School

Certified Public Accountant
02



Federal

CFDA
Number

84.36t1.
84.3614,

84 367 A,

84.173

84 027

Grant or
State Project

Number

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Ca¡cellation
ofPrior
Years'

Encumbrance

Balance 6/30/16
Uneamed

Revenue

$ 3,209

3,209

3,209

Schedule A

Amounts
Provided to

Subrecipients

KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JLTNE 30,2016

U.S. Department of Agriculture

Passed-through State Department of Agriculture:
Child Nutrition Cluster:

Federal Food Distribution Program 10.555

Federal Food Distribution Program 10.555

National School Lunch Program 10.555

National School Lunch Program 10.555

Total Child Nutrition Cluster

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. Department of Education

Passed-through State Department of Education:

No Child Left Behind Consolidated Grant:

Title I 84.0104

Federal Grantor/Pass Through
Grantor / Program Title / Cluster Title

Title IIA
Title IIA
Title IIA

Title III

Special Education Cluster:

I.D.E.A. Preschool

I.D.E.A. Part B, Basic

Total Special Education Cluster

Total U.S. Department of Education

Total Federal Financial Awards

NiA - Not Applicable

Grant
Period

7/1/14-6130115

7l1l1s-6t30t16

7/1/14-6t30t15

7/1./15-6t30t16

'7t1/ts-6/30/t6

1t1il4-6t30/15
'711113-6130/14

7l1l1s-6130t16

711il5-6130116

Award
Amount

$ 18,145

22,389

s0,829

54,014

35,877

36,281

36,1s4

16,347

409,378

Balance
(Accounts

Receivable)

6t30/t5
Cash

Received

g 22,389

3,798
49,671

75,8s8

Budgetary

Expenditures

(76e)

( 1 9,1 80)

(s4,0i4)
(73,e63)

Due to
GrantorReceivable

$ (4,343)

(4,343)

(4,343)

$ 769 $

(3,798)

(3,029)

(3,029) 7s,8s8 (73,963)

NCLB-2460-16 '711115-6130il6 3s.022 21"160

9,095
5 ?5t

16,347

409,378
a)a'7)<

(24.464)

(33,1 3 1 )

(16,34'7)

(409,378)

(42s,'125)

(3,304)

(24,036)

(21,340)

_!l]!q$)

$ 1,433

NCLB-2460-16

NCLB-2460-15

NCLB-2460-14

FT-2460-16

FT-2460-16

(s,2s2)

1,433

84.186A NCLB-2460-ll 9t1t12-8131t13 4,124 1,05 I s ( r,Os 1)

(2,',168) 461"232 (483,320)

_j_l:12 _!_ë10e!_ _q_ns?2ËI

( 1,0s 1)

$ ( 1,0s 1) g 3,209

1,433

s 1,433 $ -0-

Þ
oeo
UJ
N)

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS



KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2016

Repayment

of Prior
Years'

Balances

Balance 6130/16

Schedule B

1 of2

1,080,57 1

1,080,s71

I 65,1 59

l6s,1s9
193,798

193,798

20,185

20,1 85

20,1 85

20,185

409,s3s

543,847

14,268

I 1,658

1,211,833

1.225,195

6,376,132

69,5s0

69.550

Awa¡d
Amount

69,5s0

Balance

Unemed

Revenue/

(Accounts

Receivable)

06/30/15

$ (103,813) $

(1 s,867)

(l 8,61 9)

(1,939)
(1,939)

Budgetary

Expenditures

$ (1,080,s71)

(l 6s,1 s9)

(l 93,798)

(20,1 8s)
(20,1 8s)

(s43,847)

(1 1,6s8)

(1.225.195)

(3.260.s98)

(69.ss0)

(69.s50)

GAAP
(Accounts

Receivable)

Budgetary

Receivable

$ I 0l ,463

1 5,508

18,197

1,896

1,89s

s43,847

I 1 ,658

694,464

Cumulative
Total

Expenditures

MEMO

Grant or State

Proiect Number
Grant
Period

Cash

Received

Due to
GrantorState Grantor/Program Title

State Department of Education:

General Fund:

Special Education Categorical Aid
Special Education Categorical Aid
Security Aid
Security Aid
Transportation Aid
Transportation Aid
PARCC Readiness Aid
Per Pupil Growth

PARCC Readiness Aid
Per Pupil Growth
Extraordinary Aid
Extraordinary Aid
Additional Non Public Transportation

Additional Non Pubìic Transportation

Reimbursed TPAF Social Security

Contributions
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security

Contributions

Total General Fund

Debt Service Fund:

Debt Service Aid State Support

Total Debt Service Fund

1 5-495-034-5 I 20-089

l6-495-034-5120-089
15-495-034-s120-084

t6-495-034-5120-084
15495-034-5120-014
1 6-495-034-5120-01 4

15-495-034-5120-098

15-495-034-5120-097

t6-495-034-5120-098
16-495-034-5120-097

1s-100-034-5120-473

16-495-034-5120-044

15-495-034-5120-014

t6-495-034-5120-014

(409,53s)

(14,268) 14,268

59,019

1.22s.19s

(624,999) 3,191,133

69.550

69.5s0

7 /t/14-6130115

7 fi 
^s-6t30t167 /t/14-6130t1s

7 t1t1s-6t30/16
7 t1/14-6/30/15

7 /1/1s-6/30116

7 /t/14-6/30t1s
7 /1114-6130115

7 t1t15-6/30/16
7 t1t1s-6/30/16

7 /1/14-6/30/1s
7 /t/rs-6/30/16
71U14-6130115

7 fi t1s-6/30/16

$ 1,080,571

1,080,s7t

I 65,1 59

165,1s9

193,798

193,798

20,18s

2C,l 85

2C,,I 8s

20, I 8s

409,s3s

s43,847

14,268

I I,658

103,813

979,108
15,867

149,6s1

I 8,61 9

t7s,60t
I qlq

| 
"939

18,289

18,290

409,535

$

15-495-034-5095-002 7/1/14-6/30/15 1,211,833 (s9,0 l 9)

16-495-034-5094-003 7/t/15-6130116 1,225,19s

s (s43,847)

(1 1,658)

(s5s,s05)

16-49s-034-s120-017 7 /1 /1 s-6/30/1 6

ÊD

0q
(D
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Schedule B
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTzuCT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2OI 5

Award
Amount

Balance

Uneamed

Revenue/

(Accounts

Receivable)

06130t15

Cash

Received

Budgetary

Expenditures

Repayment

of P¡ior

Years'

Balances

(Accounts

Recelvable)

Due to
Grantor

MEMO

$

Cumulative

Total

Expenditures

4,46s

6,4s0,147

3,687
7 654

7,341

Grant

Period

7 /1/14-6/30/15
7 /1/ts-6/30/16
7 /1/14-6/30/15
7 /1/15-6/30116

7 /t/15-6130116

7lt 115-6130t16

7 /1/14-6130115

7 /1/15-6130,L6

Balance 6130116

GAAP

State Grantor/Program Title

Special Revenue Fund.

Non Public Technology Initiative
Non Public Technology Initiative
Non Public Textbooks Aid
Non Public Textbooks Aid
Non Public Security Aid
Non Public Nursing Sewices

Total Special Revenue Fund

Total NJ Department ofEducation

Food Sewice Fund:

State School Lunch Program

State School Lunch Program

Total Food Service Fund

Total State Awards

Grant or State

Project Number

15-100-034-5120-373

16-100-034-5120-373

1 5-100-034-5 120-064

l 6-l 00-034-s I 20-064

1 6-l 00-034-5 I 20-s09

I 6-l 00-034-sl 20-070

r 5-r 00-01 0-3350-023

I 6-100-010-3350-023

$ 416

442

i74
971

5?0

$ 50

442

971

425

1,530

(e48)

( l .s30)

(2.478\

(3.332_626\ $ (sss,s0s

Budgetary

Receivable

940

940 S 694,464

s 50

442

23

416

442

704

948
425

1.530

$ 70 $ (70)

_^.
( /u)

(70)

$

3,687

3,6s4

$ (624,eee)

(263)

(263)

g (62s,262)

3.418

3.264.101

3,362
? Á?(

263
(3.6s4)
(3.654)

(2e2)
¡'rqt\

292
2n

s 3.267.726 S (3.336.280) $ (70) $ (sss,797) $ 940 $ 694,7s6 $ 6,s81,049

Þ
oa
(D

(})
À

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JLINE 30. 2016

Note 1: Basis of Presentation:

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards (the "Schedules") include the

federal and state grant activity of the Kinnelon Board of Education under programs of the federal and state

governments for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. The information in these schedules is presented in
accordance with the requirements of the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards ("Uniform
Guidance") and New Jersey's OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants,

State Grants and State Aid. Because the schedules present only a selected portion of the operations of the

District, they are not intended to and do not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash

flows of the District.

Note 2: Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are

reported on the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service

fund, which are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in
Note 1 to the District's basic financial statements. Such expenditures are rccognized following the cost

principles contained in the Uniform Guidancg wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are

limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts, if any, shown on the Schedules represent adjustments or

credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

Note 3: Indirect Cost Rate

The District has elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

Note 4: Relationship to Basic Financial Statements:

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special tevenue fund on a GAAP basis.

Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue

fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant

agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until
the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the

exception of the revenue recognition of the last two state aid payments in the current budget year, which is
mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes these payments are not recognized until
the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last two state aid payments in the

subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant

accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related

revenue, whereas the GAAP basis does not.

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $3,218 for the general fund

and ($8,464) for the special revenue fund. See exhibit C-3 for a reconciliation of the Budgetary Basis to the

modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds. The schedule of
expenditures of state awards does not include the TPAF Pension and Post Retirement Medical contributions
paid by the State on behalf of the District of $1,279,834 and $1,523,928, respectively.
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
FEDERAL AND STATE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JLINE 30.2016
(Continued)

Note 4: Relationship to Basic Financial Statements (Cont'd)

Revenue from federal and state awards are reported in the Board's basic financial statements on a GAAP
basis as presented below:

Fund Federal State Total

General Fund
Special Revenue Fund
Debt Service Fund
Enterprise Fund

Total Financial Awards

s 474,440

73,963

$ 549,403 s 6,143,676 s6,692,079

$ 6,067,578
2,894

69,550
3,654

s6,067,578
477,334

69,550
77,617

Note 5: Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and

state financial reports.

Note 6: Other:

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value
received and current year distributions, respectively. T.P.A.F. Social Security Contributions represent the
amount reimbursed by the State for the employer's share of social security contributions for T.P.A.F.
members for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS ND OI]ESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2016

Summary of Auditors' Results :

- The Independent Auditors' Report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of the

District.

There were no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the financial

statements as reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Perþrmed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the District which would be

required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the

audit.

There were no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over the major state

program disclosed during the audit as reported inthe Independent Auditors'Report on Compliance For
Each Major State Program; Report on Internal Control Over Compliance.

The auditor's report on compliance for the major state program for the District expresses an unmodified

opinion on the major state program.

The District was not subject to the single audit provisions of the Uniform Guidance for the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2076 as federal grant expenditures were less than the single audit threshold of $750,000

identified in the Uniform Guidance.

The audit did not disclose any audit findings which are required to be reported in accordance with New

Jersey's OMB Circular 15-08 or 2 CFR 200.156(a) of the Uniform Guidance.

The District's program tested as a major state program for the current fiscal year consisted of the

following award:
State Grant Award Budgetary

Number Grant Period Amount Expenditures

State:

Reimbursed TPAF
Social Security Contributions 16-495-034-5094-003 711115-6130116 s 1,225,195 s 1,225,195

- The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and Type B state programs was $750,000.

- The District was determined to be a "low-risk" auditee for state programs.

Findines Relating to the Financial Statements which are required to be Reported in Accordance with
Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards :

- The audit did not disclose any findings required to be reported under Generally Accepted Government

Auditing Standards.
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2016
(Continued)

Findings and Ouestioned Costs for Federal Awards:

- Not applicable since federal expenditures were below the single audit threshold.

Findings and Questioned Costs for State Awards:

- The audit did not disclose any audit findings which are required to be reported in accordance with New
Jersey's OMB Circular l5-08 or 2 CFR 200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance.
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KINNELON BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JLINE 30. 2016

Status of Prior Year Findings:

The District had no prior year audit findings


